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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of GMR
HIGHWAYS LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, September 03, 2024, at 05:00 PM at the
Corporate Office of the Company situated at Transportation Business Board Room, GMR T&UI, Opp.
Departure Gate No. 1, Terminal-2, IGI Airport, New Delhi -110037, to transact the following
businesses:

Ordinary Business

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements viz. Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024 and Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period ended on that date together
with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Director in place of Mr."B.V.N Rao (DIN: 00051167), who retires from office by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

3.  To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year
2024-25.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
the Shareholders hereby ratify the remuneration of ¥ 60,000/-(Indian Rupees Sixty Thousand
only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to M/s. G. R. & Co., Cost
| Accountants, (Membership Number 30294) as appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost
Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

Paramjeet Sing
Company Secretary

M No: A18789
Place: New Delhi

Date: 20.07.2024




NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the Special Business is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the
company. Proxies in order to be valid and effective must be delivered at the registered
office of the company not later than forty-eight hours before the commencement of
the meeting.

Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board resolution
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote at the General Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

Members and/or proxies are requested to bring their copy of the notice to the meeting and
should bring the attendance slips duly filled in at the meeting to avoid any inconvenience.

In terms of the requirements of the Secretarial Standards -2 on “General Meetings” issued by
the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central
Government, Route Map for the location of the aforesaid meeting is enclosed.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights, provided that, a member holding more than ten percent of the total paid up share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such
person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

In terms of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Notice is being sent to all the Members
on the electronic mail address as provided by the Registrar or the Member from time to time
for sending communications to the Member unless any Member has requested for a hard
copy of the same. Members are requested to register their E-mail Id with their Depository
Participant/the Company and inform them of any changes to the same from time to time.
However, Members who prefer physical copy to be delivered may write to the Company at
its Registered Office by providing their DP Id and Client 1d/Folio No. as reference.

Members are requested to notify any change in their registered address along with pin code
and quote their respective DP Id and Client 1d/Folio No. on every communication with the
Depository Participant/the Company.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained
under Section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements
in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 will
be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

All documents referred to in accompanying Notice and Explanatory statement are open for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during the office hours on all working days
except Saturdays/Sundays and holidays between 11.00 AM. and 1.00 P.M till the date of
meeting.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
FOR THE ITEMS SET OUT IN THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE ARE AS UNDER:

Item No. 3

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-25.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the reappointment and
remuneration of M/s G.R. & Co., Cost Accountants, (Membership Number 30294) to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 at remuneration as detailed
in the resolution.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for ratification of the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company & their relatives is in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice, for approval by
the members.

By the Order of the Board of

T
() lo
/w) /
-
e Paramjeet Singh
Company Secretary

M No: A18789
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Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2024
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GMR HIGHWAYS. LTD.
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Registered Office: Naman Centre 701, 7th Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051
Corporate Office: GMR T&UI Office, Opposite Departure Gate No 1, Terminal-2,
IGI Airport, New Delhi, 110037
E-mail: highways.secretarial@gmrgroup.in
Website: https://gmrpui.com/gmr-highways-limited/
Phone No.: 011 - 40052455

ATTENDANCE
| SLIP

DPID ‘ FOLIO NO. / No. of |
| CLIENT ID shares |

Name(s) and address of the member in full:

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 18t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, September 03, 2024, at 05:00 PM at the Corporate Office of the Company situated
at Transportation Business Board Room, GMR T&U]I, Opp. Departure Gate No. 1, IGI Airport, New
Delhi -110037.

[ ] MEMBER [ | PROXY

Signature of Member / Proxy




GMR HIGHWAYS. LTD.
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Registered Office: Naman Centre 701, 7th Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051
Corporate Office: GMR T& Ul Office, Opposite Departure Gate No 1, Terminal-2,
IGI Airport, New Delhi, 110037
Website: https://gmrpui.com/gmr-highways-limited/
E-mail: highways.secretarial@gmrgroup.in
Phone No.: 011 - 40052455

FORM NO.MGT-11

PROXY
FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Co}npanies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014)

' CIN | U45203MH2006PLC287171

Name of the GMR HIGHWAYS LTD

Company - )

Registered Naman Centre 701, 7t Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31, G Block,
Address | Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

| Name of the
member(s)
Registered Address ‘

E-Mail ID

' DPID and Client ID
/Folio No

I/We, being the member(s) holding shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

Name

Address

E-Mail ID
Signature |

or failing him
Name

Address

E-mail ID Signature

2
or failing him
Name

3 | Address




- | E-Mail ID ' Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18™ Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 03, 2024, at 05:00 PM at the
Corporate Office of the Company situated at Transportation Business Board Room, GMR T&U], Opp.
Departure Gate No. 1, IG] Airport, New Delhi -110037 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

[ Ordinary Business |

1. ‘ To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements viz. Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024 and Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the period ended on that
| date together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.
2. | To appoint Director in place of Mr. B.V.N Rao (DIN:00051167), who retires from office by
| _‘_ro_tation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
Special Business

3. | Toratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-
25.

Signed this day of 2024

Affix Revenue

Signature of Member Stamp of Re.1

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.




ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE

" “ .
TR T e kMarkel &

R k 4 = Milibary Area
7 J 27 N Deiw Cantonment
g WEST SAGARPUR T

s

Sutah' Interngt onat
Museun Of 10 /lets

¢' Sect: 10 Market

T U AT
. 45
¥4, SECTORT /
| ) N ARKA \
\ | 'J-: RK ° MNational oy
J iR ] \
1\ £ =T

™

PY Ground
Ak

0

CTOR 23 &
dw 23
LG Airgrort Terming.2

Indira Gandhi
international

-\‘_.*PVR Frive 2/\

wlamafin

irport /
sz “aeill Biogiorsity Park J" "':“"":l
IR26 € e el , M 1_1.1r
WA Rt o iy
% Q

Hose Gardan 0 MAHIPALPUR
Lo

PUSHPANJALI
FARMS
?"':;r.',r-"ix

s

48

B0 Markat o

Mandats 0078 Geanle

Google

DAMSIIO rdx Terme

Buddna = I

..4,‘4';-‘;&;&

Nehry Park
AwE
ol
Museun 3
ol 1 »
\. s N
%
\ e
, ;e ¢

[oer Park | ake
vl oM #aw

HAUZ KHAS
faze )

+ o

Servopayn
0 Eoclave Muarket { =
i

Rend feedbark M by




GMR HIGHWAYS LIMITED
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Registered Office: Naman Centre, 701, 7" Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No. C-31, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051
Corp Off: GMR T& Ul Office, Opposite Departure Gate No 1, Terminal-2, IGI Airport,

New Delhi - 110 037

E-mail: highways.secretarial@amrgroup.in Website: www.gmrpui.com

Phone No.: 011 - 40052455

Directors’ Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eighteenth Annual Report together with the
audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March

31, 2024.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

The financial highlights from the Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended

March 31, 2024 are as under:

(T in Lakh)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Income 18,089.80 23,459.55
Expenditure 9,225.17 11,334.68
Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 8,864.63 12,124.87
Depreciation & amortization expense 2.43 2.69
Profit before Interest and Tax 8,862.20 12,122.18
Finance costs 17,109.18 15,282.38
Exceptional ltem — (Loss on Receivables of CCDs) - (10,083.67)
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (8,246.98) (13,243.87)
Tax Expense (including Tax adjustments of prior years) - (251.74)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (8,246.98) (12,992.13)
Re-measurement (loss)/ gains on defined benefit plans (1.28) (2.21)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (8,248.26) (12,994.34)

During the year ended March 31, 2024, your Company had incurred a loss of ¥ 8,248.26 Lakh
as against the loss of ¥ 12,994.34 Lakh incurred during the previous year. As compared to
the preceding Financial Year, losses have decreased during this Financial Year mainly due
to reduction in expenditure incurred on Major Maintenance and Change of Scope works
carried during the year and absence of Exceptional ltems (provisions for loss on CCD

Receivable).
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STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year under review, the Company carried out Major Maintenance works for GMR
Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd and GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Pvt Ltd.
Further, the Company continued to provide Repairs & Management services to its Subsidiary
Companies. The services of the Company were satisfactory.

SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS IN ARBITRATION AND COURT MATTERS

The Additional Director, Director General of GST Intelligence has issued a show cause notice
dated January 30, 2023 demanding recovery of GST of ¥ 17,68,86,000/- on Annuities
received w.e.f. July 1, 2017. Aggrieved by the show cause notice, the Company (erstwhile
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressway Limited) has filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble
Telangana High Court. Hon’ble High Court vide order dated March 16, 2023 directed the
Respondent not to take any coercive action till next date of hearing. The matter is yet to be
listed for final hearing.

Significant Progress in Arbitration and Court Matters of Subsidiary Companies

e |In GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL), the Division Bench
of Delhi High Court vide order dated September 20, 2023 dismissed the appeals filed by
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) and State of Haryana (SoH) against the
judgment dated September 26, 2022 passed by the learned Single Judge whereby the
award dated August 26, 2020 was set aside and held that the entire dispute is to be
referred to arbitration de novo.

In the meantime, NHAI and SoH have filed SLPs against the order of Division Bench
before Hon’ble Supreme Court, which listed on September 2, 2024.

The Company has initiated the new Arbitration process and has also appointed its
nominee. However, NHAI, SoH and State of Punjab (SoPb) are yet to appoint their
nominee. For this purpose, GACEPL has approached Hon’ble High Court of Delhi for
appointment of arbitrators on behalf of NHAI, SoH and SoPb. In view of the pendency of
the SLPs in the Hon’ble Supreme Court, the matter is listed for hearing on September 26,
2024.

e In GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL) (arbitration
emanating from Change in law), the Division Bench of Delhi High Court vide order dated
May 7, 2024 has dismissed all the three appeals filed by NHAI under Sectlon 37 of
Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 against the order dated August 4, 2020 passed by
the Learned Single Judge whereby it had upheld the issue of Change in Law and struck
down the directions of constitution of Committee by NHAI, instead it had appointed Justice
D.K. Jain, retired judge of Supreme Court to quantify the claims of GHVEPL, and the
challenge of NHAI to Award was dismissed and the Court also stayed the recovery of
Revenue Share {ill next date of hearing.

In the arbitration emanating from withdrawal of six laning, the Arbitral Tribunal by order
dated November 7, 2022 has stayed the operation of letter dated May 8, 2020 till the fi




Award. The arguments in the matter have been concluded on April 14, 2024 and Award
has been reserved.

In the meantime, to avoid further litigations, GHVEPL and NHAI entered into amicable
settlement whereby NHAI will pay an amount of ¥ 1,387.21 Crore as net claim after
adjusting revenue share due to it. This amount will be paid in 2 tranches, out of which 1
tranche amount has been received by GHVEPL, which is utilized to repay the entire
outstanding term loan of GHVEPL along with accrued interest thereon. 2™ tranche amount
will be paid by NHAI once the project is handed back to NHAI and NOC from all the lenders
of GHVEPL are submitted. As part of the settlement, GHVEPL will handover the project
back to NHAI on midnight of July 1, 2024. GHVEPL has handed back the project to NHAI
as agreed and hence GHVEPL has no operations / cash flows from midnight of July 1,
2024.

With this settlement, all the disputes between GHVEPL and NHAI and settled and all the
litigations which were at various forums will be withdrawn.

e In the case of GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (GPEL), the Hon’ble Delhi High
Court upheld the interpretation of GPEL on frequency of Major Maintenance. Order is
under challenge by NHAI in the Division Bench of the Hon’ble Delhi High Court.
Arguments are under progress.

e The Additional Director, Director General of GST Intelligence has issued a show cause
notice dated April 28, 2023 demanding recovery of GST of % 68,26,68,000/- on Annuities
received w.e.f. July 1, 2017. Aggrieved by the show cause notice, GMR Pochanpalli
Expressways Limited has filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble Telangana High Court.
Hon’ble High Court vide order dated June 27, 2023 directed the Respondent not to take
any coercive action till next date of hearing. Arguments in the matter have been concluded
and the matter is reserved for judgement.

e In view of receipt of Z 55,00,00,000/- from Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) towards all
claims arising out of Arbitral Award dated January 30, 2020 and other claims, GMR
Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL) has withdrawn the Execution
petition filed before the Hon’ble High Court of Madras on February 5, 2024. Similarly,
GoTN has also instructed its Counsel to withdraw its SLP pending in Supreme Court.

The Additional Director, Director General of GST Intelligence has issued a show cause
notice dated April 28, 2023 demanding recovery of GST of ¥ 92,13,15,808/- on Annuities
received w.e.f. July 1, 2017. Aggrieved by the show cause notice and Circulars No.
150/6/2021 GST dated June 17, 2021 and consequential Circular No. 8/2021- TNGST
dated June 17, 2021, GCORRPL has filed writ petitions before the Hon’ble High Court of
Madras. Hon’ble High Court vide order dated June 28, 2023 directed GCORRPL to furnish
reply to the SCN, however the Department was restrained from concluding the matter until
the next date of hearing in the High Court. The matter is yet to be listed for final hearing.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
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During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.
DIVIDEND

Since there is no profit, the Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year
2023-24.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Amount, if any, which Company proposes to carry to any Reserves: NIL

HOLDING COMPANY / SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL), along with its
nominees and Dhruvi Securities Limited, remained the holding company by virtue of holding
100% of Equity Share Capital of the Company. As on March 31, 2024, in terms of the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, your Company had the following Subsidiary, Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures.

Subsidiaries

1. GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited

2. GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited

3. GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
4. GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited
Associates: NIL

Joint Venture: NIL

The performance and financial position of each of these Subsidiary Companies for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, as per the Form AOC - |, is annexed as Annexure |.

Further, there is no subsidiary and associate (including Joint Venture) which ceased during
the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ¥ 41,38,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Four
Thousand One Hundred Thirty Eight Crores only) divided into 2,34,20,00,000 (Two Hundred
Thirty Four Crores Twenty Lakh) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and
17,96,00,000 (Seventeen Crore Ninety Six Lakh only) Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- (Indian
Rupees Hundred only) each. During the year under review, there was no change in the
Authorized Share Capital of the Company.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital




The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of the Company is ¥ 8,43,33,47,100/-
(Indian Rupees Eight Hundred Forty Three Crores Thirty Three Lakh Forty Seven Thousand
and One Hundred Only) divided into 84,33,34,710 (Eighty Four Crores Thirty Three Lakh
Thirty Four Thousand Seven Hundred and Ten) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- (Indian Rupee Ten
only) each.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting
rights nor has granted any stock option or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2024, none of the
Directors of the Company hold any instrument convertible into Equity Shares of the Company.
Accordingly, there has been no change in the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company
during the year under review.

COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (CCDs)

During the year under review, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on July 25, 2023 had
issued 2,576 nos. of unsecured 0.01% CCDs of face value of ¥ 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
One Lakh only) each of the Company amounting to ¥ 25,76,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty
Five Crores Seventy Six Lakh only), by way of preferential issue to below mentioned
Investing Group Companies through Private Placement Offer Letter cum Application Form in
Form PAS-4, after obtaining the approval of shareholders of the Company through special
resolution. The approval of the shareholders obtained for the above issue of CCDs in their
general meeting held on July 26, 2023. The allotment of the above CCDs was made vide
Board Resolution passed by circulation on September 26, 2023.

' S. No. | Name of Allottees | No. of CCDs |
‘ 1 . Aklima Properties Pvt. Ltd. . 64_ |
2 . Amartya Properties Pvt. Lid. ) 105
3 _.A—ste_ria Réal Es%s Pvt. Lta. 18
4 Deepesh Properties Pvt. Ltd. 300
5 Eila Properties Pvt. Lid. 411
6 | Idika Properties Pvt. Ltd. 571
7 | Nadira Properties Pvt. Ltd. 291

8 Padmapriya Properties Pvt. Ltd. . 35 )
| 9 Prakalpa Properties Pvt. Ltd. - 466
| Total 2,576

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

During the year under review, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 08,
2024 had issued 7,000 nos. of Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable 14% Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs) of face value of ¥ 10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh only) each of
the Company for an aggregate value of % 700,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Seven Hundred
Crores only) to below mentioned Allottees (Investors) by way of private placement through
Private Placement offer cum Application letter, in Form PAS-4.




S. Name of Allottees (Investors) No. of

- No. | sl NCDs
1 Zeal Global Opportunities Fund 3,000
Nova Global Opportunites Fund PCC - _ _
3,000
‘Touchstone _ . )
Total 7,000

Aforesaid allotment of NCDs was made vide Board Resolution passed by circulation on
February 21, 2024.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)

Presently, the Company’s Board comprises of 6 Directors, comprising of Three Non-
Executive Directors, One Executive Director and Two Independent Directors. The Board is
satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills,
experience, expertise, diversity, and independence. The Board provides leadership, strategic
guidance, an objective and independent view to the Company’s management while
discharging its fiduciary duties, thereby ensuring that the management adheres to the high
standards of ethics, transparency, and disclosure. The Board periodically evaluates the need
for change in its composition and size.

The Directors on the Board and KMP of the Company are as follows:

3(') Name of Director and KMP Designation

1 Mr. BVN Rao Chairman

2 | Mrs. Sridevi Venisheety Woman Director

3 | Mr. S Rajagopal Independent Director
4 | Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy Independent Director
5 | Mr. O Bangaru Raju Managing Director
6 | Mr. M B Terdal Director

7 | Mr. Paramjeet Singh Company Secretary
8 | Mr. Vikas Bansal Chief Financial Officer

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section 164
of the Acl. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures under Section
184 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Declaration Given by Independent Directors

Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of
the Act and are in compliance with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014. Further, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that t
are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reas




anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties as Independent
Directors of the Company.

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code for
Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act and also complied with the Code

of Conduct for directors and senior management personnel, formulated by the Company.

CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the period under review, the following changes were made in the Composition of
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel:

Changes in Directors/Key | » Mr. Madhva B Terdal retired by rotation in the Annual
Managerial Personnel General Meeting held on August 31, 2023 and being
eligible offered himself for re-appointment, was re-
appointed as the Director of the Company.

> Mr. O Bangaru Raju was reappointed as Managing
Director of the Company for a term of 5 years w.e.f. June
16, 2023 in the Annual General Meeting held on August
31, 2023.

» Mr. S. Rajagopal was appointed as Independent Director
of the Company for second term of 5 years w.e.f.
November 27, 2023 in the Annual General Meeting held on
August 31, 2023.

Proposal for forthcoming| » Mr. BVN Rao would retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM Annual General Meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of
Directors on the recommendation of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee in their meeting held July 20,
2024 recommends his re-appointment. The proposal for
his re-appointment has been included in the Notice of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting for your approval.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD W.R.T. INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE
AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR

During the year under review, Mr. S. Rajagopal was appointed as Independent Director for
second term with effect from November 27, 2023 to hold office for a term of five (5) years
and the same was approved by the members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting
held on August 31, 2023.

Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy was appointed as an Independent Director with effect from
September 26, 2022 to hold office for a term of five (5) years and the same was approved by
the members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on Septem
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The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise and they hold highest standards of integrity
(including the proficiency) and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act read with Rules made
thereunder and are eligible & independent of the management.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Board Meeting

The Board of directors of the Company met six (6) times during the Financial Year 2023-24
viz. April 29, 2023; July 25, 2023; September 22, 2023; October 20, 2023; January 19, 2024
and February 08, 2024. The intervening gaps between the dates of meetings were pursuant
to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder and Articles
of Association of the Company.

S.No Name of Directors Attendance of Directors
Held Entitled to Attend | Attended
1 Mr. BVN Rao 6 6 4
2 Mrs. Sridevi Vinesheety 6 6 6
3 Mr. S Rajagopal 6 6 6
4 Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy 6 6 6
5 Mr. O Bangaru Raju 6 6 6
6 Mr. Madhva B Terdal 6 6 5

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the financial year, the Audit Committee of the Board duly complied with the
requirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder.

The composition of the Committee during the year is mentioned below:

S. Name Category
No

1. | Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy Independent
2. | Mr. S Rajagopal Independent
3. | Mr. O Bangaru Raju Executive

All the members of Audit Committee are financially literate.

Audit Committee meetings attendance details:

The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the Financial Year 2023-24 viz. April 29, 2023;
July 25, 2023; October 20, 2023; January 19, 2024 and February 08, 2024, the details of
which are given below:




S. Name of Members | Designation Attendance of Members

No Held Entitled to Attended
Attend
Mr. Mohan Rao .
1 Murthy Chairman 5 5 5
2 | Mr. S Rajagopal Member 5 5 5
3 | Mr. O Bangaru Raju Member 5 5 5

All recommendations made by the Audit Committee have been noted/approved by the Board.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

In terms of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, your Company has formulated and established a vigil
mechanism for its directors and employees to report genuine concerns. Company’s vigil
mechanism is in the form a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ and the same is also available on the
website of the Company i.e. https://gmrpui.com/pdf/GHWL Policy on Whistle Blower.pdf

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent
manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behaviour.

This policy provides a platform to the Directors and employees of the Company to report
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
code of conduct or ethics policy. It also provides the mechanism for stakeholders, including
individual employees and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns
about illegal or unethical practices.

Company’s vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguard against the victimization of
employees and directors who wish to avail the vigil mechanism to deal with the instance of
fraud, mismanagement, unethical behaviour, if any. It is ensured that no unfair treatment is
meted out to a Whistle Blower by virtue of his/her having reported a Protected Disclosure
under this Policy.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly complied
with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder.

The composition of the Committee during the year is mentioned below:

S. No Name Category
. Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy Independent
2, Mr. S Rajagopal Independent

3. Mr. B.V.N. Rao Non-Independent & Non- Executive-
ANAYS
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The Nomination and Remuneration_Committee met two (2) times during the year viz. April
29, 2023 and July 25, 2023, the details of which are given below:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings attendance details:

S.No Name of Directors Designation Attendance of the Members
Held Eligible to Attended
Attend
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy Chairman 2 2
2 Mr. S Rajagopal Member 2 2
3 Mr. B.V.N. Rao Member 2 2

COMPANY'’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has formulated a Policy which, inter-alia, enumerates appointment and
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s
website at https://gmrpui.com/pdf/GHWL Nomination&Remuneration Policy.pdf .

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to constitution of
Stakeholders Relationship Committee are not applicable to Company.

DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, in the absence of profits of the Company during the last
financial year, the Board of Directors did not recommend any amount for incurring on any
CSR activities.

Further, the CSR Committee of the Board pursuant to Section 135 (9) of the Companies Act,
2013, was dissolved w.e.f. July 28, 2021 and the powers of the CSR Committeeares being

exercised by the Board.

Details about the Policy developed & implemented

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, as updated as per the amended provision of
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder, as approved by the Board is
available on the website of the Company i.e. hitps://gmrpui.com/pdf/GHWL CSRPolicy.pdf

ANNUAL RETURN




Pursuant to the provisions as contained in Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2024 is available on the Company’s website i.e.
https://gmrpui.com/pdf/GHWL-Annual-Return-2023-2024.pdf

DEPOSITS

Since the Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V (Acceptance of
Deposits by the Companies) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed
thereunder; the details required to be given in terms of Rule 8 (5)(v) & (vi) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

In accordance to the provisions as prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding the disclosure of names of the top ten
employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employees who was in
receipt of remuneration of not less than one crore and two lakh rupees, if employed
throughout the year, or remuneration of not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees
per month, if employed for any part of that year, if any is provided as Annexure |l.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The details of Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange
earnings or outgo are given in Annexure lll.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Shareholders of the Company in their 16" Annual General Meeting held on September
26, 2022 had appointed M/s. Girish Murthy & Kumar, Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm
Registration No. 000934S), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for second terms, for a
period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from Financial Year 2022-23 and ending till
the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2027. The Auditors
also confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

Qualification /| Reservation/ Adverse Remark or Disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report

The Auditor’'s Report does not contain any qualification / Reservation / Adverse remarks.
However, Statutory Auditors in their report has emphasized certain matters, which are given
below along with the response for the Management:

Emphasis of Matter
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We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying
Standalone IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

A. We draw the attention to Note no 36 of the accompanying financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to the investment of Rs. 407.76
Crores (including investment in equity/ preference shares of Rs.196.54 Crores)
made by the company in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
(GACEPL) a subsidiary of the company. Though GACEPL has been incurring
losses, and the net worth is negative, based on the management’s assessment
and the legal opinion on the tenability of appeal before Hon’ble Supreme Court,
in respect of claim before NHAI, Government of Haryana and Punjab for loss of
revenue, such investment has been carried at cost. Our opinion in this regard is
not qualified.

B. We draw your attention to Note no.37 of the accompanying financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024, regarding the carrying value of investment of
Rs.650.37 crores in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(GHVEPL). Though the liabilities of GHVEPL exceeds the total assets of the
company, and has been incurring losses since its inception, based on the
management’s valuation assessment and the legal opinion on the compensation
from proceedings initiated by the company against NHAI for loss of revenue,
before Delhi High Court, such investments have been carried at cost. Our opinion
is this regard is not qualified.

C. We draw your attention to Note no.37 of the accompanying financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to uncertainty in the matter of
restriction of concessionaire period of GHVEPL by NHAI to 15 years as against
the initially envisaged period of 25 years, which the subsidiary is contesting before
arbitration tribunal and based on independent legal opinion is confident on getting
relief. However, the financials of the subsidiary does not carry any adjustments in
the financial statements on account of the above. In line with the same view, the
company has not made any adjustments to the carrying of investments in the
financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matter.

Management response on the Emphasis of Matter:

A. The Company has made an investment of ¥ 40,775.71 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥
27,407.31 lakh) [including loans of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2023: ¥ 7,753.00 lakh) share
application money pending allotment of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2023: NIL) and investment
in equity / preference shares / CCDs of ¥ 40,775.71 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥
19,654.31 Lakh) in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
(‘GACEPL’) a Subsidiary of the Company. GACEPL has been incurring losses since
the commencement of commercial operations. The management believes that these
losses are due to loss of revenue arising as a result of diversion of partial traffic on
parallel roads. The matter is currently under arbitration however based o
management's internal assessment and a legal opinion the management of GAC




is confident that it will be able to claim compensation from relevant authorities for the
loss it has suffered due to such diversion of traffic and accordingly the investment in
GACEPL has been carried at cost. The three member Hon'ble Tribunal vide its order
dated August 26, 2020, has pronounced the awards wherein majority of the Tribunal
has disagreed with the contention of GACEPL and has rejected all the claim of
GACEPL whereas the minority Tribunal has upheld the claims of GACEPL.

Subsequently, NHAI vide letter dated September 3, 2020 has asked GACEPL to
deposit the balance Negative Grant amount along with the interest. NHAI has also
written to Central Bank of India, Escrow Bank to remit the amount. Aggrieved by
rejection of all of its claims, GACEPL had filed two applications each in both Punjab
and Haryana matters before Delhi High Court — one u/s 34 of Arbitration Act, 1996,
seeking setting aside of the award of Arbitral Tribunal and another application u/s 9
of Arbitration Act, 1996, seeking stay on the letters of NHAI demanding payment of
the instalments of Negative Grant along with interest. GACEPL had also filed an
application under section 36 of Arbitration Act, 1996, for stay of operation of the Award
till the time its challenge u/s 34 is decided.

The Court vide its order dated September 24, 2020 had admitted the challenge to
Award and issued notice in section 34 application but the other two applications filed
u/s 9 and 36 were rejected.

Delhi High Court vide order dated September 26, 2022, has set aside the award dated
August 26, 2020 and the entire dispute is to be referred to arbitration once again for
which parties are at liberty to re-initiate arbitral proceedings as per the contractual
covenants. All issues of fact and law would remain open to be agitated by GACEPL,
NHAI and States of Haryana and Punjab in the de-novo arbitral proceedings.

In view of Judgement of Supreme Court in HCC vs NHAI wherein it was held that
minority award has no relevancy. As such the appeal under Section 37 filed by the
Company became infructuous and was withdrawn on August 28, 2023.

The Division Bench of Delhi High Court vide judgement dated September 20, 2023
dismissed the appeals filed by NHAI and GoHR against the judgment dated
September 26, 2022 passed by the learned Single Judge. On April 1, 2024, the
Division Bench of Delhi High Court dismissed the appeal filed by State of Punjab
against the judgment dated September 26, 2022 passed by the learned Single Judge.

Aggrieved by dismissal of its appeal u/s 37 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996,
NHAI has filed two SLPs in Supreme Court. GoHR has also filed SLP challenging
dismissal of its appeal u/s 37. The matters are now tentatively listed in the week
commencing September 02, 2024.

In the meantime, GACEPL has also invoked fresh arbitration against NHAI, GoHR
and GoPB and has appointed its nominee arbitrator. Since NHAI, GoHR and GoPB
failed to appoint their nominee arbitrators, GACEPL has approached Hon’ble High
Court of Delhi for appointment of arbitrators on their behalf. However, in view of the
SLPs pending before Hon'ble Supreme Court, matter is listed for heari
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September 26, 2024,

. The Company has made an investment of ¥ 65,037.00 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥

65,037.00 lakh) [including loans of ¥ 43,192.00 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥ 43192.00
lakh) share application money pending allotment of ¥ NIL (March 31, 2023: NIL) and
investment in equity / preference shares of ¥ 21,845.00 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥
21,845.00 lakh)-in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(‘GHVEPL’) a subsidiary of the Company. GHVEPL has been incurring losses since
the commencement of commercial operations. These losses are primarily due to loss
of revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial traffic due to bifurcation of state
of Andhra Pradesh and ban on sand mining in the region. These events constitute
Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and same has been agreed by
NHAI and has also agreed to pay compensation, however there was no agreement
on the quantification of the claim amount. GHVEPL has invoked Arbitration and has
filed a claim of ¥ 167,600.00 lakh (Based on values up to March 31, 2020) before the
Tribunal. Tribunal vide its order dated March 31, 2020 has pronounced the award
unanimously, upholding GHVEPL'’s contention that bifurcation of state of Andhra
Pradesh and ban on sand mining in the region constitutes Change in Law event and
GHVEPL is entitled for compensation for the loss of revenue arising as a result of
drop in commercial vehicles. However, on the quantum of the claim amount, majority
of the Tribunal members have directed NHAI to constitute a committee for
determining the claim amount based on data / record available with GHVEPL and
NHAI.

GHVEPL had filed two applications u/s 34 (challenge to Award to limited ground that
NHAI cannot be judge of its own cause] and u/s 9 of the Arbitration Act [seeking stay
on recovery of Revenue Share till claims are quantified]. NHAI also filed its challenge
u/s 34 of the Arbitration Act to the arbitration award.

Delhi High Court vide order dated August 4, 2020 had upheld the Change in Law and
struck down the directions of constitution of Committee by NHAI and instead had

appointed HMJ D.K. Jain, retired judge of Supreme Court to quantify the claims of
GHVEPL.

Justice D.K. Jain submitted his report on February 28, 2022 with Delhi High Court
whereby he has awarded a sum of ¥ 167,220.00 lakh up to March 31, 2020. Interest
on the claimed amount in terms of clause 47.5 of Concession Agreement has also
been allowed. For claims for the year 2020-2021 and onwards, the same principle
would be applicable.

In the hearing held on March 03, 2022, the report submitted by Justice D.K. Jain was
taken on record. However, in view of the pendency of appeal u/s 37 before Division
Bench, the matter is not heard and is now listed on July 10, 2024 for further
proceedings.

In the meanwhile, NHAI has also filed an application u/s 34 of AA, 1996 before Delhi
High Court on May 31, 2022 against the report of Justice Jain. Matter was list
May 07, 2024.




Aggrieved by the order dated August 4, 2020 passed by the Single Judge dismissing
the challenge of NHAI to the Award, NHAI has filed an appeal u/s 37 of AA, 1996,
before Division Bench of Delhi High Court challenging the said order. The same was
listed on September 7, 2020 when the Court refused to interfere with the order passed
by Single Judge and directed that the proceedings before Mr. Justice D.K. Jain will
continue subject to outcome of the present appeal.

The Division Bench of Delhi High Court vide order dated May 7, 2024 has dismissed
all the three appeals filed by NHAI under Section 37 of Arbitration and Conciliation
Act, 1996 against the order dated August 4, 2020 passed by the Learned Single
Judge whereby it had upheld the issue of Change in Law and struck down the
directions of constitution of Committee by NHAI, instead it had appointed Justice D.K.
Jain, retired judge of Supreme Court to quantify the claims of GHVEPL, and the
challenge of NHAI to Award was dismissed and the Court also stayed the recovery
of Revenue Share till next date of hearing.

C. On May 8, 2020, GHVEPL has received a notice from NHAI restricting the
concession period to 15 years pursuant to clause 3.2.2. of the Concession
Agreement by stating that NHAI is satisfied that 6-laning of the project is not
required. GHVEPL has sought material on record from NHAI and has further
obtained legal opinion.

Aggrieved by the action of NHAI, GHVEPL has invoked arbitration under Dispute
Resolution mechanism prescribed under the Concession Agreement.

GHVEPL has filed an application u/s 17 of the Arbitration Act, 1996 before Tribunal
for stay of operation of NHAI's letter dated May 8, 2020 till conclusion of arbitration
proceedings.

By order dated November 7, 2022 the Arbitral Tribunal has allowed the application
and directed stay on operation of letter dated May 8, 2020 till the final Award.

Counsel for both the parties concluded their submissions on April 14, 2024. The
matter is now reserved for pronouncement of award.

In the meantime, to avoid further litigations, GHVEPL and NHAI entered into amicable
settlement whereby NHAI will pay an amount of Z 1,387.21 Crore as net claim after adjusting
revenue share due to it. This amount will be paid in 2 tranches, out of which 1% tranche
amount has been received by GHVEPL, which is utilized to repay the entire outstanding term
loan of GHVEPL along with accrued interest thereon. 2™ tranche amount will be paid by
NHAI once the project is handed back to NHAI and NOC from all the lenders of GHVEPL are
submitted. As part of the settlement, GHVEPL will handover the project back to NHAI on
midnight of July 1, 2024. GHVEPL has handed back the project to NHAI as agreed and hence

GHVEPL has no operations / cash flows from midnight of July 1, 2024.
\,\WAYS
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on July 25, 2023 had appointed M/s Umesh Kumar & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (COP No. 8361), to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report, in Form MR - 3, for the financial year
2023-24, is annexed as Annexure IV.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the report of the Secretarial
Auditor, which require any clarification/explanation.

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on July 20, 2024, has reappointed M/s Umesh Kumar & Associates, Company
Secretaries in whole time practice, New Delhi, who have provided their consent and
confirmed their eligibility to act as the “Secretarial Auditors” of the Company, to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company was required to maintain
the cost records and the said cost records were also required to be audited. The Board of
Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s G R & Co, a
Practicing Cost Accountant (Membership No. 30294), as the Cost Auditor for the financial
year 2023-24 for auditing the cost records of the Company. M/s G R & Co. has submitted the
Cost Audit Report for Financial Year 2023-24, which is annexed as Annexure V. There are
no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the said Cost Audit Report.

The Shareholders of the Company at their 17" AGM held on August 31, 2023, had ratified
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors in terms of Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
& Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on July 20, 2024, based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, re-appointed M/s G.R. & Co. for the Financial Year 2024-25 for
auditing the cost records of the Company maintained pursuant to Section 148 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended.

The agenda item for obtaining requisite ratification of the shareholders for the fees payable
to the Cost Auditors for conducting the audit for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been included
in the notice of Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 29, 2023, based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, had appointed M/s. Bhaskara Rao & Co., Chartered Accou
Hyderabad as the Internal Auditor for the Financial Year 2023-24 for auditing the r

w0




the Company. M/s. Bhaskara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants has submitted the Internal
Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24. There are no qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks in the said Internal Audit Report.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 30, 2024, based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, have appointed M/s. Bhaskara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Hyderabad as the Internal Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-25.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities and hence
exempted from the provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Companies Act,
2013 under sub-section (11) of the said section w.r.t. loans given, Investments made,
guarantee given and security provided by it.

Further, during the financial year 2023-24, the Company invested into Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited,
Subsidiary Company. Details of investments are appearing at note no. 6 of the Notes to
Accounts of the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Company presents a detailed landscape of all related party transactions before the Audit
Committee, specifying the nature, value, and terms and conditions of the transactions. All the
transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
Transactions with related parties are conducted in a transparent manner keeping the interest
of the Company and Stakeholders at utmost priority. The Company has framed a Policy on
Related Party Transaction for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such
transactions.

During the year under review, most of the transactions entered with related parties were in
accordance with the Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company and in the ordinary
course of business and are generally at arms’ length in their context. Further, the particulars
of transactions as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in prescribed Form AOC- 2 is
annexed as Annexure VI.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company which occurred between the end of the Financial Year 2023-24 to which the
financial statements relates and the date of the report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT




Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors, based on their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanation/ certifications obtained from the management, confirm in respect of the audited
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATEMENT _INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION OF
ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN
THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company has a detailed Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board. The risk analysis is carried out with the help of Enterprises Risk Management
team of the Group in line with the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The Company’s
Risk Management framework is in line with the current best practices and effectively
addresses the emerging challenges in a dynamic business environment which incorporate
therein the specific elements of risk associated with the business of the Company. In today’s
challenging and competitive environment strategies for mitigating inherent risks in
accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative.

As a matter of Policy, risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the
same.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION
HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS
COMMITTEES, CHAIRMAN AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the need to ensure effectiveness of the Board
governance and requires a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual
evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its Commi
Chairman and individual Directors.




The mechanism to evaluate the performance of Board, its committee and Directors, as per
the statutory requirement, was considered and adopted by the Board in its Meeting held in
July 31, 2015.

In order to do the evaluation, structured questionnaires / performance evaluations forms were
considered by the Board for evaluating itself/ Committees/ Chairman and individual Directors,
which were broadly based on certain specific parameters. During the year under review, the
Board and Nomination and Remuneration committee has carried out evaluation of individual
Directors and performance of their Committees.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule IV of the Act, the independent directors must hold at
least one meeting in a year without the presence of non-independent directors and members
of the Management. Accordingly, independent directors of the Company met on July 04,
2024:

I. To review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

II. To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform their duties;

lll.  Any other matter the Independent Directors may want to discuss.

All the independent directors were present at the meeting.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

OR _COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status and future operations of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company monitors and ensures efficient communication between various sites and
corporate office; efficiently manages the information system and reviews the IT systems;
ensures accurate & timely recording of transactions; stringently checks the compliance with
prevalent statutes, management policies & procedures in addition to securing adherence to
applicable accounting standards and policies.

The internal control system of the Company provides for adherence to approved procedures,
policies, guidelines and authorization. In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in
place and all the internal control systems and procedures are in order, regular and exhaustive
internal audit was conducted by M/s M Bhaskara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants who was
appointed as Internal Auditors. Internal Audit Reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis which are then placed before the Board for their noting.
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DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION
(12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, no such fraud was reported by the Statutory Auditors.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to provide a safe and dignified work environment for its
employees which is free of discrimination, intimidation and abuse.

The Company has adopted a Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”).

The objective of this policy is to provide protection against sexual harassment of women at
workplace and for redressal of complaints of any such harassment.

The Company has a duly constituted Internal Committee (IC) and your Directors further state
that during the year under review, no case was filed or complaint was received pursuant to
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, a statement showing the number of complaints filed during the
financial year and the number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year is
shown as under:

Category No. of No. of complaint| No of complaints
complaints pending at s pending as on end of
the beginning of FY | filed during the FY FY
pexual Nil Nil Nil
Harassment
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR




There are no proceedings pending against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC Code).

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

There has not been any instance of one-time settlement of the Company with any Bank or
Financial Institution.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company does not have any credit rating since there are no external loans from Banks
or Financial Institutions.

SECURITY TRUSTEE

Name of the Security Trustee
Address

Email:

DESIGNATED PERSON

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on January 18, 2024 has designate Company
Secretary of the Company, as the “Designated Person” for the purpose of Section 89 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks and gratitude to Yes Bank,
IDBI Bank, FPIs who have subscribed the NCDs of the Company and Statutory Auditors M/s
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Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of the contributions made by the
employees at all levels through their hard work, dedication, solidarity and support and express
their gratitude to the Holding Company for continued support.

For and on behalf of the/Boang:

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2024

Chairman
DIN:00051167



Form AOC-1

Annexure - |

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rute 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries®

(Figuresing)

Sr. Name of the Subsidiary GMR GMR Ambala GMR Chennai
| No Pochanpalli Chandigarh Outer Ring
Expressways Expressways Road Private
- Limited Private Limited Limited
Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if
; ) . N.A. N.A. A
! different from the holding .
company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on the last
2. | date of the relevant financial N.A. N.A. N.A.
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries.
3. | Share capital 1,380,000,000 982,380,000 300,000,000
th
4, | Reserves &surplus/ Other 1,59,91,71,827 | (1,81,41,50,664) |  42,41,78,088
Equity — |
5. | Total assets 6,44,51,06,421 2,43,96,22,629 6,59,28,16,866
6. | Total Liabilities 6,44,51,06,421 2,43,96,22,629 6,59,28,16,866 |
7. | Investments 0 0 0
8. | Turnover 77,74,61,314 81,14,63,245 71,86,64,825
9. Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 3,71,86,136 (27,25,86,562) 28,62,05,6471 |
| Current tax +Def dTax+T - - ‘-
1p, | Currenttax +Deferred Taxr Tax 4,41,43,766 (1,81,852) (2,01,019) |
of prior years |
11. | Profit/ (Loss) after taxation (69,57,630) (27,24,04,710) 28,64,06,660 :
12. | Proposed Dividend - - -
13. | % of shareholding? 74.48% 80.32%
Pursuant 1o the Hon ble NCLT Mumbar order cated August 03, 2022, approving the Composite Scheme of Arrangement [or Tl jlamation

amongst GMR Tuni Anakapalll Expressways Linited, GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (“Transferor Companies”), GMR

Highways timited (' Transferee Company
Ecpressways Limited and GMVR Tambaram Tind
e August 11,2022 and appointed date Sonl 01

% Share held includes dnect/mdirect hoiding ot equiy shares and preference shares carrying voting rights

n respective Shareholders & Creditors, our subsidiaries’ namely GMR Tuni Anakapall
1ain Expressways Limited amalgamated with the Company with effect from effective date
1< accordingly their details not considered while preparing Form AQOC-1



(Figuresin %)

| Sr. 5 ~ Name of the sh_bsidia_ry GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada
' No Expressways Private Limited
| Reportin_g period for the subsidiary
l i 1A : concerned, if different from the holding N.A.
| company’s reporting period
' Reporting currency and Excﬁgnge rate as
2. | onthe last date of the relevant financial N.A.
| year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
3. | Sharecapital 50,000,000
4 .!-E{eser\-/es & surplus/ Other Equity | . (12,90,87,95,957)
5. |Totalassets 19,32,76,13,534 |
6. | Totalliabilities 19,32,76,13,534
7 investments - N 0
8. |Turnover 4,86,39,91,873
9 Profit/—("Lqu's) before taxation (1,50,06,43,048)
? | Current tax +Deferred Tax+ Tax of prior .
years
11. | Profit/ (Loss) after taxation (1,50,06,43,048)
12, -li'roposed Dividend o ]
13. | % of shareholding® 72.21%

For and on behalf of the Board
Y]
. yﬂ)
J
|

{

\
B.V.N. Ra _O. Bangaru Raju
DireManaging Director
DIN:00051167 DIN 00082228

\E\W &= Y3

Vikas Bansal Para Singh

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2024

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

% Share held mncivoes drecy, mdract hoiding of 2auity shares and preference shares carrying voting rights

=y



Remuneration Data

Annexure - |

Name Designation Gross Nature of | Qualific| Exp Date of Age Previous
Salary |Employmen| ation | (Yrs.)| Commence| (Yrs)| employment
(inCr.) t ment of
Employmen
t
Paramjeet | Lead - 0.38 Regular C.S 19.36 | 04.10.2016 | 48 Hindustan
Singh Secretarial Power
Projects Pvt.
Ltd.
Vikas Manager - 0.26 Regular CA 16.61 | 07.01.2019 | 40 Soma Indus
Bansal F&A Varanasi
Aurangabad
Tollways Pvt
Ltd

None of the Employees is the relative of Director nor holds any percentage of shareholding in the

Company.




Annexure -l

Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

(A) Conservation of Energy
(i) the steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy:

Company has implemented various power conservation measures in all the Highway projects
which are managed by its subsidiaries. These measures include installation of:

1. Automatic Power Factor Controller;
2. Timers;

3. Servo Stabilizers;

4. Solar Lighting: and

5. LED lights

Installation of Automatic Power Factor Controller helped to maintain the power factor at 0.95
and above; Servo Stabilizers which helped stabilizing the power fluctuation at various
locations and consequently avoiding damage to fixtures and equipment; timers which helped
on optimizing the glowing duration of the highway lights thereby reducing the power
consumption.

Company completed LED retrofitting to replace the existing High pressure sodium vapor
lamps with no capital expenditure to company in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways,
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways, GMR Pochanpalli Expressways and GMR
Chennai Outer Ring Road.

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

Company has also installed Solar LED lights at selected locations such as toll plazas and
administrative buildings, truck lay byes and at junctions which are functioning effectively
considerably adding to the power conservation and savings.

(iii) the Capital Investment on energy conservation Equipment: NIL
B. Technology Absorption:
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:

Micro Surfacing: It is a most versatile concept of preserving the road surface that
works as a remedy for a broad range of road surface problems, such as cracks, hungry
surfaces, rutting removal, etc. Micro-surfacing is a relatively new concept in India, being
used routinely across the world as preventive maintenance program. By way of
.application of a polymer modified cold-mix on an existing road with minor defects,
which works as a preventive maintenance, major repair / reinstatements can be/QWAY.g
avoided for a substantial time period This method being a cold-mix application




environmentally friendly and very economical in nature. Because of its quick-setting
properties micro surfacing can be adopted in a broad range of weather conditions,
particularly suitable for night application in heavy traffic roads.

Other advantages are, preventing further deterioration of cracked surfaces, preventing
water penetration thereby prevention of sub-base failure, creates an aesthetically good
looking surface and enhances the life of pavement by 4 to 6 years which further reduces
the effective length during the periodic maintenance of the Main Carriageway.

Company executed Micro Surfacing at Ambala Chandigarh Expressways at selective
locations.

Hot in Place Recycling: Hot in Place Recycling methodology is adopted in the
pavement maintenance instead of Conventional pavement laying methodology thereby
achieving substantial savings and also environmentally friendly by reducing the natural
material consumption. Company has taken up this work in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada
Expressways at selective locations as per the pavement conditions.

Reclaimed Asphalt Pavement: As a process of innovation in technology and
environmental friendly technology, company carried out Reclaimed Asphalt Pavement
(RAP) in service roads, where in the existing pavement surface will be milled and taken
to Hot mix Plant and mixed with fresh materials and will be brought back to the site and
laid as Bituminous Pavement. This process reduces new natural material consumption.

Technologies in Toll Management systems:

RFID enabled Electronic Toll Collection System: The Electronic Toll Collection
(ETC) System is a new toll system designed to enhance convenience for drivers by
enabling cashless toll collection through RFID Tag readers and thus mitigating
congestion at toll plazas. It saves fuel by avoiding idling of engines due to traffic
congestion.

Slow speed weigh in Motion System: Slow Speed weigh in motion (SSWIM) system
is a technology to capture the Gross weight of the Vehicle while in motion using load
cell technology to collect Overweight charges from the vehicles which are found to be
overloaded. Overweight deteriorates pavement faster than expected and mandate to
spend more on maintaining the pavement.

Automatic Vehicle Classification System: Automatic Vehicle Classification (AVC)
system is a technology to capture the vehicle types which are passing through the Toll
plaza to ensure the correctness of the Toll Collector vehicle classifications and
- .improves the toll revenue

Vehicle Tracking System: Vehicle Tracking System (VTS) is a GPS based technology
to track the Project Vehicles location at any given point of time and to monitor the
moving patterns of vehicles. The virtual ‘Poly net’ disallows and alar
movement beyond jurisdiction. Such restriction results in fuel savings
discipline in route patrolling




AT

C.

DG sets Fuel Monitoring system: DG set Fuel Monitoring system is based on GPRS
enabled sensor based technology to monitor DG set Fuel status and enables remote
monitoring.

Vehicle actuated Speed Display: Vehicle actuated speed display board is based on
radar sensing technology to capture vehicle speed plying on the Highway. This
technology will help in identifying speed violations beyond limit and for enforcement by
authorities resulting in crashes reduction.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: NIL




Annexure {V

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31t MARCH, 2024
(Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members of

GMR Highways Limited

(CIN No. U45203MH2006PLC287171)
Naman Centre, 701, 7% Floor, Opp. Dena Bank
Plot No. C-31, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR Highways Limited (hereinafter
called the Company) for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 (Audit Period), complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the Audit Period according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and circular and
notification issued by MCA from time to time;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA) and the rules made there under:
(Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the year under review).

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations & Bye-laws framed there under, pursuant
to rule 9 (A) (11) of Companies (Prospects and Allotment of Securities) Rule 2014. The
shareholders of the company hold all its share in dematerialized form.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the
year under review).
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(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(vi) The company being an unlisted public company and subsidiary of GMR Power and
Urban Infra Limited (Holding Company w.e.f. 31% December, 2021 as per NCLT
Order), a listed Company, the following Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines are not
applicable:

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations. 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009: and

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018.
(vii)) OTHER APPLICABLE ACTS,

(a) Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

(b) Payment of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made thereunder,

(¢) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder,

(d) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder,

(e) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and rules
made thereunder,

(f) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made thereunder,

(g) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, and rules made thereunder,

(h) The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970

(i) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

(j) Indian Stamp Act, 1899 & State Stamp Acts

(k) The Registration Act, 1908

(1) Indian Contract Act, 1872

(m) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

(n) National Highways Authority of India Act, 1988



(o) Regulation under TNRDC

(p) The Motor Vehicles Act 1988

(q) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

(r) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

(s) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

(t) The Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989

(u) The Andhra Pradesh Minor Mineral Concession Rules, 1966

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i1) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if
applicable; (Not Applicable)
(iii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 to the extent
it is applicable as the Company is a subsidiary of Listed Company.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with applicable provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Except in case of meetings convened at shorter notice, adequate notices were given to all
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decision of the
board was unanimous and accordingly no dissenting members’ views have been recorded.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and Guidelines.

In the course of our audit, we have made certain recommendations for good corporate
practices to the compliance team, for its necessary consideration and implementation by the
Company.

We further report that during the audit period, the following specific events / actions took
place in the Company having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.;

1. During the period under review, the company has subscribed 2,11,214 nos. of
unsecured 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of GMR Ambala-
Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL) of Rs. 10,000/- each
aggregating to Rs. 211,21,40,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Eleven Crores Twenty One
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Lakh and Forty Thousand Only) against the outstanding interest free loan and sponsor
support of the Company.

2. During the period under review, the company has issued 2,576 nos. of unsecured
0.01% Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of face value of Rs.1,00,000/-
each aggregating to Rs. 25,76,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Seventy Six Lakh
Only), by way of preferential issue to Investing Group Companies.

3. During the period under review, the company has issued 7,000 nos. of unlisted,
secured, redeemable 14% Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value of Rs.
10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs. 700,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores
only) to Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) by way of private placement

New Delhi Umesh Kumar & Associates

June 21, 2024 Practicing Company Secretary
M. No 21567, COP No.: 8361
Peer Review Cert. No. 1895/2022
UDIN:

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE
A’ and forms an integral part of this report.



To,

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members of

GMR Highways Limited

(CIN No. U45203MH2006PL.C287171)
Naman Centre, 701, 7™ Floor, Opp. Dena Bank
Plot No. C-31, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records
based on my audit.

Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and
information furnished are the responsibilities of the management of the company.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial Records. I believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

During the course of my examination of the books and records of the Company, that
has been carried out in accordance with generally accepted practices in India, We have
neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, nor the Company
has noticed and reported any such case during the year.

The contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and not in isolation of
the observations, if any, in the report(s) furnished/to be furnished by any other
auditor(s)/ agencies/authorities with respect to the Company.



New Delhi
June 21, 2024

Umesh Kumar & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary

M. No 21567, COP No.: 8361

Peer Review Cert. No. 1895/2022
UDIN: A021567E000557311



Annexure -V

G.R & Co.

COST ACCOUNTANT
No.259, 2nd Floor,
10t Cross, 2" Main,
Padmanabhanagar,
Bangalore -560 070

FORM CRA- 3
FORM OF COST AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to rule 6(4) of the companies (cost account and audit) rules, 2014)]

To,

The Board of Directors of GMR Highways Limited

Naman Centre, 7th Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No.C-3 G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)

Mumbai City MH 400051

I, Geetha R, having been appointed as a cost auditor under section 148(3) of companies act
2013 (18 of 2013) of GMR Highways Limited having its registered office at Naman Centre,
7th Floor, Opp. Dena Bank, Plot No.C-3 G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)
Mumbai City MH 400051 (hereinafter referred to as company), have audited the cost records
maintained under section 148 of the said act, in compliance with the cost audit standards, for
the year 2022-23 maintained by the Company.

(i) The audit of cost records has been made in conformity with the Cost Auditing
Standards issued by the Institute of Cost Accountants of India.

(i) | have obtained all the information and explanation, which to the best of my
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.

(iii) In my opinion, proper cost records, as per rule 5 of the companies (cost records and
audit) Rules 2014 have been maintained by the company in respect of service under
reference.

(iv) In my opinion, proper returns adequate for the purpose of the cost audit have been
received from the branches not visited by me.

(v) In my opinion and to the best of my information, the said books and records give the
information required by the companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required.

(vi) In my opinion, company has adequate system of internal audit of cost records which
to my opinion is commensurate to its nature and size of its business.
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(vii)  In my opinion, the information and statements annexure to this cost audit report gives
a true and fair view of the cost of rendering of service, cost of sale, margin and other
information relating to the service under reference.

(vii)  In my opinion, the company has provided the required certified cost statements and
schedules for each service.

(ix) Detailed service-wise cost statements and schedules thereto in respect of the service
under reference of the company duly audited and certified by me are kept in the
Company.

Sd/-
DATE: NAME OF COST ACCOUNTANT: GEETHA.R
PLACE: BANGALORE MEMBERSHIP NUMBER: 30294



FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure - VI

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Sl Particulars Details

No.

(a) | Name(s) of the GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada GMR Pochanpalli
related party & Expressways Private Ltd Expressways Limited
nature of (Subsidiary Company) (Subsidiary Company)
relationship

(b) Nature of Major Maintenance 3" Major Maintenance Works
contracts/arrangement Agreement
s/transactions

(c) Duration of the 2020-21; 2021-22 & 2022-23 5 years
contracts /
arrangements/
transactions

(d) Salient terms of the 1.Major maintenance works |3 Major Maintenance

contracts or
arrangements or
transaction including
the value, if any

for the entire stretch
(excluding the completed
portion during FY 2019-20)
of the project highway will be
carried out by GMR
Highways Ltd (GHWL) at an
internal estimated cost of

¥115.18 Cr. (excluding
GST)
2.GHWL will raise TAX

Invoice every month.

3.Payment will be made after

joint measurement between
GHWL and the Company.
Any variation / NS items will
be undertaken within the
budgeted amount and will
be billed as per the
prevailing market rates.

Agreement executed with
effect from April 01, 2024 at
an estimated value of %130
crores.

=
O
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4 Variation item cost should
not be more than 2% of the
estimated cost. If the cost of
variation items exceeds 2%,
the same will be carried
through a variation order.

(e)

Justification for
entering into such
contracts or
arrangements or
transactions’

The Company needs to carry
out major/ periodic
maintenance of the roads as
and when the roughness
index falls below the
threshold limit and as such,
since some stretches on
Main Carriageway requires
overlay as roughness index
on these locations has fallen
below the threshold limits.

As the work was to be carried
out after a period of 5 years,
the other contractors were
not willing to give a firm
quote at the time of Board
approval. Accordingly, GMR
Pochanpalli  Expressways
Limited approached the
Company and entered into
an agreement for carrying
out this work.

resolution was passed
in general meeting as
required under first

proviso to section 188

f Date of approval by 25/07/2020 25/07/2020
the Board

(9) | Amount paid as NIL NIL
advances, if any

(h) Date on which the 31/07/2020 31/07/2020

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2024

TR
B L
Chairman

DIN: 00051167




GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of GMR Highways Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Highways
Limited(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2024, the Statement of Prolit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of cash flows for the year thfen
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as
“Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2024 give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2024, its loss,total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind As financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rulesmade
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. ;

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying
Standalone IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

A. We draw the attention to Note no 36 of the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to the invc?mg@'in- 3

4502, High point IV, 45, Palace Road. Bangalore-510 001, Ph: 223 81 473 / 9845245409 Ghy v |




GIRISH
MURTHY & KUMAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

76 Crores (including investment in equity/ preference shaxjes of
(l;rsl.zlséfjgz Crores) rn(ade by the company in GMR Ambala Chandigarh
Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL) a subsidiary of the' company.
Though GACEPL has been incurring losses, and the networtl.l is negative,
based on the management’s assessment and the legal opinion on t_he
tenability of appeal before Hon’ble Supreme Court, in respect of claim
before NHAI, Government of Haryana and Punjab for loss of revenue, such
investment has been carried at cost. Our opinion in this regard is not
qualified.

B. We draw your attention to Note no.37of the accompanying ﬁnanc‘:lal
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, regarding the carrying
value of investment of Rs.650.37 crores in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada
Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL). Though thc liabilities of GHVEPL
exceeds the total assets of the company, and has been incurring losses
since its inception, based on the management’s valuation assessment and
the legal opinion on the compensation from proceedings initiated by the
company against NHAI for loss of revenue, before Delhi High Court, such
investments have been carried at cost. Our opinion is this regard is not
qualified.

C. We draw your attention to Note no.37of the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, relating to uncertainty in
the matter of restriction of concessionaire period of GHVEPL by NHAI to
15 years as against the initially envisaged period ol 25 years, which the
subsidiary is contesting before arbitration tribunal and based on
independent legal opinion is confident on getting reliel. However, the
financials of the subsidiary does not carry any adjustments in the
financial statements on account of the above. In line with the same view,
the company has not made any adjustments to the carrying of
investments in the financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The C.ompany’ls Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the board report, but does
not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report

tht;re()n. The board report is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

Our oginion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.
TANRTH )
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In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge

obtained during the course ol our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financialstatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income / loss, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordancewith the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

Thisresponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguardingof the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenanceol adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are [reelrom material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management and Board

of Directors, cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s [inancial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements, as a whole are ree from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and 10 issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Saswill always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise {rom fraud or error an
are consideredmaterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasom@bls

: : < LU AP o
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be cxpected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to [raudor error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting fromfraud ishigher than
for one resulting from error, as [raud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrcpresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures thatare appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing ouropinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operatingelfectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relateddisclosures made by
managemendt.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis ol accounting and, based on theaudit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may castsignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaintyexists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone [inancialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the auditevidence
obtained up (o the date ol our auditor’s report. However, [uture events or
conditions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in amanner that achieves [air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit
findings, including any signilicant deficiencies in internal control that w
identify duringour audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that mayreasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report
that:

a)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary [or the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears [rom our examination of
those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS [inancial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as
on March 31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 [rom being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this

report.
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g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its managerial
personnel during the year and accordingly reporting in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act is not required,;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations other than as
disclosed in note no. 33 which would impact its [inancial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be translerred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. A. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no [unds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity (ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behall of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

B. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”

_
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vi.

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Benelficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

During the year, the Company, neither declared nor paid any
dividend. Hence reporting on compliance with provisions of section
123 of the Act does not arise.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of

_account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a

feature of rccording audit trail {cdit log) famhly and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable [rom April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is
not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number:-0009343
S

2. Palace Road,
Bangalore-1

A.V Satish Kumar 2
Partner 2 oo
Membership number: 026526
UDIN: 24026526BKFIECC4028

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30" April2024
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» Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report referred to in clause 1
of paragraph on the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024

Re: GMR Highways Limited

I. In respect of the Company’s Tangible assets & Intangible asscts:

i.  The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant &
equipment and there are no intangible assets held by the company
during the ycar.

ii. The Company has a program of verilication to cover all the items of
Property, plant & equipmentin a phased manncr over a period of three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the sizc of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the
Company has carried out physical verification during the Current year
and no major discrepancies have been noticed during such verification.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (including
investment properties) held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is a lessee) disclesed in the [inancial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

iv.  There is no revaluation done by the company of its propertly, plant and
equipment (including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

v. There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder,

II. In respect of details of Company’s Inventory & Working capital:

i. The nature of company’s operation does not warrant holding of any
stocks. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the
company.,

ii. The company, during any poeint of time of the year, has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets.
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or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as mentioned in notes to
accounts note number 6, 7 and 8. The details of the same are given below:

Rs. In Crores

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate 276.94

amount  given
during the year

Balance 55.50 762.34
outstanding as
at balance sheet
date

Note :Loan outstanding as at balance sheet date not include Equity
Component of Loan given.

b. The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of
loans and guarantees provided are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the

Company’s interest.

c. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal
and interest are regular wherever applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or
advances in the nature ol loans granted to such companies, firms,

LLPs or other parties.

e. The Company has granted loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s)
which had fallen due during the year and such loans or advances in
the nature of loans werc renewed/extended during the year. The
details of the same has been given below:
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[Name of the Borrower

Aggregate
amount of
existing loans
renewed - INR in

Percentage to
the total loans
granted during
the

1

Expressways Pvt Ltd

crores year(Including
the renewed
loans-%
14.36 3.91%

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(EPC)
GIL-SIL-JV 0.28 0.08%
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada 75.99 20.67%

f. During the year, the Company has not granted loans, which are

repayable on demand.

g. There are no loans wherein the terms or period of repayment were not

specified .

IV.In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us

made any investments, gave any
tion with a loan to any other body
corporate or person in contravention of section 185 and 186 of the

the company has not granted any loan,
guarantee or provided security in connec

Companies Act,2013.

V. According to the information and explana
not accepted any deposits or amounts whi
the meaning of Sectio

the public within
Companies
the provisions ol clause

VL

tion given to us the Company has
ch are deemed to be deposits from
ns 73 to 76 of the Act and the
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company,

pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government of [ndia, the maintenance
of cost records as prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

VII. In respect of Deposit of Statutory liabilities:

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations

given

statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax,

to us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed

sales-

tax, scervice tax, duty of customs, duty ol excise, value added tax, cess

and other material statutory dues, as

applicable, with the appropriate

mrr\_
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authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereol were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months [rom the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no statutory dues relerred to in subclause (a) above that have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

VIIIL. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records

of

the company examined by us we have not come across any instances of

any transactions which are not recorded in the accounts that have been
disclosed or surrendered before the tax authorities as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961.

IX.a.
explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that, the
company has not delayed in the repayment of loans taken from lender &
interest thereol during the year,

X.

a)
b)
c)

d)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and

The company has not taken any loan from Government and the company
has not issued any debentures.

The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, money is not raised by way of term loans during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not
been utilised for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any [unds [rom any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associale companies.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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any preferential allotment or private placement of shares. However,
the Company has issuedfully, or optionally) convertible debentures
during the year on private placement basis and the issue is in
compliance withthe Section 42 and 62 of Companies Act, 2013. The
funds raised on such issue have been utilized for the purpose for
which the funds were raised.

Xl.a. During the course ol examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have not come across any instance of fraud by the company or on
the company by its officers or employees of the company during the year.
Further there were no whistle blower complaints received during the year.

b. No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and Explanations given
to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii)
of the order i1s not applicable.

XIII. According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
noles to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

XIV. The company has an adequate internal audit system to commensurate
with the size and nature of its business and the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were considered.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 of the order is not
applicable.

XVI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions
of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to
the Company.

XVII. The company has incurred any cash losses of Rs, 155.74Crs in the
financial year and of Rs. 206.86 Cr in the immediately preceding financial
year,

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company. A rxmy‘f@
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XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the

basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of [inancial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge ol the
plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the opinion that
no material uncertainty cxists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year [rom the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We [urther state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

XX.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1)
of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The company does not have any unspent amount with respect to the
- obligations under Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the
company is not liable to transfer any amount neither to the Fund
specified under Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 nor to the
Special Account according to the provisions of Section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013,

XXI. The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of

standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment
has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 0009348

ke

A.V Satish Kumar \ 2\ Bangalare-1
Partner \(,}fﬂ 5
Membership number: 0265
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ce: Bangalore

Date: 30-04-2024
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i)
of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR
Highways Limited(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone [inancial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companics Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is Lo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over [inancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ol Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over [inancial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over [inancial reporting and
their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over linancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance ol records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurcs of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material elfect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over [inancial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or [raud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over f[inancial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration numbcr 0009348
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
Note As At ASAT
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3.54 5.97
(b) Investment property 5 1,605.74 1,605.74
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 - <
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 160,776.80 140,828.50
(i) Loans 7 (i) 50,101.55 52,091.47
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 (i) 29,809.60 26,966.52
() Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 611.34 789.95
(f) Other Non Current Assets 13 (i) 172.39 134.43
Total Non-Current Assets 243,080.96 222,422.58
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Current Investments 6 (i) - -
(ii) Loans 7 (i) 26,132.39 10,368.65
(iii) Trade Receivables 9 920.03 2,126.88
(iv) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (i) 58.92 30,133.79
(v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenty 10 (i) 1.83 1.71
(vi) Other Financial Assets 8 (ii) 3,406.72 14,287.81
(b) Other Current Assets 13 (ii) 598.07 443.94
Total Current Assets 31,117.96 57,362.78
TOTAL ASSETS 274,198.92 279,785.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 84,333.47 84,333.47
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 2,576.00 -
(c) Other Equity 15 40,188.67 48,436.94
Total Equity 127,098.14 132,770.41
Liabilities
Non-Current Liablities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 103,015.43 96,673.45
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 (i) 3,509.37 36.18
(b) Provisions 20 (i) . ¥
(c) Deferred Tax Liablities (Net) 12 - 5
Total Non-Current Liablities 106,524.80 96,709.63

45, Palace Road,
Bangalore-4
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Cash Elow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
profit / {Loss) for the period (8,246.98) {13,243.87)
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation 243 2.69
Finance Charges 17,109.18 15,282.38
Loss / (Gain) on disposal of assets (net) 0.00 {50.16)
Exceptional items - 10,083 .67
Interest Income on Financial Assets (7,158.19) (7,905.93)
\nterest Income on Bank deposit and others (1,749.46) (3,820.58)
Provisions/Liability no longer required written back (207.01) (168.34)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (1.28) {2.21)
Profit on sale of Investment {0.47) (0.26)
(251.78) 177.38
Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in Financial Assets and other non Current Assets (2,203.10) (8,040.24)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories, Financial Assets and other Current Assets (154.13) 359.28
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables 1,206.85 693.96
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (1,523.45) {171.41)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Finance Liablities (57.71) (621.40)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision {492.55) 1,058.11
Increase / {Decrease) in Other Current Liablities {(54.11) 2,752.62
Cash From/{Used In) Operating activities (3,529.99} {3,791.69)
Tax (Paid)/Refund 178.61 506.65
Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating activities (3,351.38) (3,285.04)
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Addition) / Deletion to Fixed Assets (0.00) 54.82
Interest Income on Bank deposit and others , 1,089.42 1,801.94
Decrease/(Increase) in Loan to related parties (15,700.74) 16,041.62
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Bank Balance (0.12) {0.08)
profit on Sale of Investment 047 0.26
Cash From/{Used In) Investing Activities (14,610.96) 17,898.57
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase/(Decrease) in CCDs Issued to related parties 2,576.00 -
Increase/(Decrease) in NCDs Issued to External parties 70,000.00 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from external parties (75,536.71) {9,874.24)
Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from Group Companies (Net) 1,642.55 40,860.66
Interest paid on Loan (10,780.14) (15,543.39)r
Other Finance Charges Paid (14.23) {6.64)
Cash From/{Used In) Financing Activities {12,112.52) 15,436.37
Net Increase /Decrese In Cash and Cash Equivalents {30,074.87) 30,049.91
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the Year 30,133.79 83.88
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year 58.92 30,133.79
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GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: UdSlO!MHZOOGPLCZS?l?lI

Notes forming part of Financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

€)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices In active markets for ldentical assets or liabllities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that |s significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financlal statements on a recurring basis, the Company's determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest fevel
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by

transferring promised good or service to a customer. The revenue is recognised to the extent of transaction price 2llocated
to the performance obligation satisfied. Performance obligation Is satisfied over time when the

transfer of control of asset (good or service) to a customer is done over time and in other cases, performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time. For performance obligation catisfled over time, the revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a
proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Variable
consideration is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount as appropriatein a given
circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice and there is no financing
component involved in the transaction price.

interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or 10 the amortised cost of a financial
lizbility. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at acqulsition cost less accumulated depreclation and cumulative impairment.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Recognition:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(2) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the

“"_‘ﬁ"i amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use Is included in the cost of the
respective asset If the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note xx and xx regarding significant accounting

judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further Information about the recorded decommissioning
provision.




GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment assets are measured as the difference

between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Further, When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection {as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of property, plant and equipment and whose use is expected to be
irregular are capitalized as property, plant and equipment.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of
residual value, in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as

below:

- Plant and equipments 4-15 years
- Office equipments 5 years

- Furniture and fixtures 10 years

- Vehicles 8-10 years
- Computers 3 years

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on
assets sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is
depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life ofthat asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f)  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
an amalgamation in the nature of purchase Is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The

amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

h)

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be pald to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabllities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction either in
0Ci or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (a nd tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
apainst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Borrowing costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of anclliary costs incurred In connection with the arrangement of
borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributa ble to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessa rily

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for Its Intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expen sed In the period they occur.

Inventories
Raw materials, components,
basis.

Net reatizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First in First Out

Lease
Finance Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.- Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized.d on an accrual basis as per the terms of agreements entered into with lessees.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee

Lease rentals are recognized as an expenses on a straight line basis w
except where-

(i) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern o
on lease.; or

(ii) The payments to the lessor are structured to Increase
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases

ith reference to lease terms and other considerations
f the benefit derived from the asset taken or given

in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the

Lands obtained on leases, where there Is no reasonable certainity that the Company will obtain ownershp by the end of

the lease term shall generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease pyayments include upfront premium paid
plus any annual recurring lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.

1,

45, Palace Road, )
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

m)

Impairment

1’h.=.-p Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an Indlcation that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impalrment testing for an asset Is required, the company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset’s orcashgenerating units’ (CGUs) net selling
price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered Impaired and s written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if avallable. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model |s used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detalled budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the company's cash generating unlts to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a perlod of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously
revalued property, plant and equipment, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the
impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no ionger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversai
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of prefit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revaiued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets And Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because It is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises In extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent llability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. Contingent assets are only only disclosed when it s proable that the economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company's has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is materlal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabllity. When discounting Is used, the Increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.




GMR Highways Limited
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

n)

o)

Retirement and other Employee Benefits

short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans,

All employee benefits payable/avallable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund Is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident f und scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. if the contribution already pald exceeds the contribution due forsservices received before the balance sheet

date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accurnulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay asa
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reparting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the Jeave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non—current liability.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow . of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the
discount rate determined by reference to market ‘ yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
% The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabllity or asset.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
phofit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financlal assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost ;

A ‘debt instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost If both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are su bsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This categery generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

P The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the

company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvermnent. In that case,

the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a

basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not mea sured as at FVTPL

4 .
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

[

) '
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p)

q)

*
2
=

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL Is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.
Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR

method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilitles are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits recieved.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with
an original maturity periods of three months or less.

Earning per share

Basic Earnings Per Share Is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the perlod.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

\} %02, N5
Hidhit Point 1y |2
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GMR Highways Umited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs

S Investment property Amount
land
As At March 31, 2023 1,605.74
Additions =
Disposals .
As At March 31, 2024 1,605.74

Note:- 1) Company is having original tital deeds in its name. Investment property represents in Land as follows:-

As At As At
Land Detail March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Situated at Ambala Chandigarh Road, Dist - Ambala (58628.83 5q Mtr) 1,605.74 1,605.74

award from NHAI in GTT case

The original title deads of the property has been offered as security with the Registry of the Court for getting claim

Rupees in Lacs
As At As At
Non current investments
. March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
Investment in Equities Shares 20,437.81 20,437.81
Equity part of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 46,914.05
Equity part of Investment in CCDs 57,181.40 36,060.00
Equity portion of related party loans 36,164.15 37,337.25
Investment in financial guarantees 79.39 79.39
160,776.80 140,828.50
As At As At
Breakup of Investment in Equities at Cost March 31,2024 March 31,2023
{2) Investment in subsidiaries
(i} 13.5%.30,000 (March 31, 2023: 13,59,30,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each in 13,593.00 13,593.00
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
() 5,07,42,720 (March 31, 2023: 5,07,42,720) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each in GMR 5,074.27 5,074.27
Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
(ii) 24,50,000 (March 31, 2023: 24,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each In GMR 245.00 245.00
Hyderzbad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(iv) 1,47,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,47,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in GMR 1,470.00 1,470.00
Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited
{b) Other investment - Equity
{i} 5,55,270 (March 31, 2023: 5,55,370) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each in Indian 55.54 55.54
Highways Management Company Ltd.
Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81
Less: - impairment in Investment of Shares
impairment in investment * T
Net Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81

e,
High! Point 1V
45, Palace Road,




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Equity Comp t Pref Shares - Party wise ___Pref Share
[GHvEPL 16,249.31 |
[scorr 6,011.67
GacEp. ————— 463060
Equity Component of GACEPL Pref share trf from GTT GTA _5,915'.4_ 7
46,914.05
Equity Component CCDs- Party wise o
GSPHL 12,600.00 |
GKSIR 23,460.00
GACEPL 21,12140 |
57,181.40
Equity Comp t Loan - Party wise
GHVERL 29,255.49
GCORR 547.57
GACEPL 4,468.51 |
GKSIR 1,892.57
36,164.15
As At As At
610) Current Investments March 31,2024| March 31,2023
ment in Quoted mutual funds . -
Rupees in Lacs
As At As At
7 Losss [usecared, considersd good) March 31,2024] March 31,2023
(i) Non Current
{2) Loans and advance to related parties
Loan to body corporate 4,741.95 4,432,00
Loan to related party 45,355.60 47,655.47
50,101.55 52,0947
[ii) Current
Loan Receivables considered good - UnSecured
{2) Loans to related parties 26,132.39 10,368.65
(b) Loan to employees - -
26,132.39 10,368.65
Loan to related parties / others considered good include ;
| _t0Non Current Rupees in Lacs
GHVEPL 39,023.33 35,247.20
GACEPL 6,163.38 12,176.38 |
|GIL-SILIV - 63.00
[Namitha Real Estates Private Limited 172.89 172.89
[ugPL (Others) 4,741.95 4,432.00
{ 50,0155 52,091.47
| ) Current
GPUIL Corporate 13,980.75 -
GPUIL EPC 2,834.65 1,519.65
oISty 1,718.00 50.00
GHVEPL 7,599.00 8,799.00
26,132.39 10,368.65
Loans st concessional rate of interest to Group companies are separated Into assets and equity components based on the terms of the contract, On receipt of the loan, the fair value of
the zssels comp isd ined using a market rate for an equivalent Instrument. This amount is classified as a financial assets measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs)
wntil it is extinguished. The inder of the p ds Is recognised and Included in retained earning,

45, Palace Road,
5\ Bangalore-1




GMR Highways Limited

CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal St ts for the Year ended March 31, 2024
As At As At
$ Other Financisl Assots March 31, zuul March 31, 2023
(i) Non Current
Interest acerued on Inter corporate loans and deposits 3,920.29 3,582.41
Einancial Asset of Invest. in preference shares Issued by related parties 25,089.31 23,384.11
29,809.60 26,966.52
[il} Current
Security Deposit - 2793
Non trade receivable- related party 87.29 10,153 69
Mon trade receivable considered good 18,696.23 18,696.23
Receivable Other than trede - considered good B.67 867
Unbilled revenue - related party 1,516.60 1,62553
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.02 23.03
Interest accrued others 1,156,856 591,61
Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans and deposits 613.48 433,55
22,079.15 32,960.24
Less- Provision for doubtful non trade receivable {18,672.43) (18,672 43
3,406.72 14,287.81

The Company had subscribed 1,45,00,040 8% redeemable non-cumulative non-canvertible preference shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid up in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressway
Private Limited. Preference Shares are redeemable at par on May 1,2022. However the company reserves the right to all for buy-out of the Preference shares by the promoters of the
{ssure Company of redemption of the preference shares by the lssuer company at any time after the expiry of € months from the date of allotment by giving one month notice.

As these Preference share are non cumulative and the Issuer Company Is not under obligation to pay dividend, only fair value of redemption value has been considered as financial
assets using a market rate for an equivalent instrument, This amount is classifled as a Investment measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on
3 ion. The rer der of the proceeds is recognised and included In Equity investment.

regemp

In April 2022, the terms associated with the existing preference shares has change to make them Compu Iserily Convertible into equity shares at ratio of 1:10 on or before August 31,
2027

Rupees in Lacs
As At
9 Pade Rachubies March n,;:::: March 31, @
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Receivables idered good - UnS ed 920.03 2,126.88
520.03 2,126.88
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
Asat 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periads from due date of payment Total
Current but not | Less than 6 & months - More than
due Months 1year 1-2years |2-3years |3 years
undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 17.15 456.76 269.37 17675 - 920.03
Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - " - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - =
Disputed Trade receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - . - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables —credit im paired - - = - - - =
Total - 17.15 456.76 269.37 176.75 - 920.03
As st 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Current but not | Lessthan 6 6 months - More than
due Months 1year 1-2years | 2-3years |3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered good - 1,361.02 318.20 447.66 - - 2,126.88
Undisputed Trade Receivabl — which have significant increase In credit risk - - = - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired . . - . - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - . - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables = which have significant Increase in credit risk - - - - - - =
Di Trade recelvables - credit impaired - - - - - . -
Total - 136102 | 31820 |  447.66 - - | 212688

{I} No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jolntly with any other persan.
{ii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Breakup of financial assets

As At As At
30 Cash sad cash equivalents March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
(i} Balances with banks
- In Current Account 58.92 133.79
- Deposits with less than three months maturity - 30,000.00
(i} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Margin money* 1.83 171
60.75 30,135.50
Rupees in Lacs
As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At Cost
Investment in Equities 20,437.81 20,437.81
At amortised cost
Investment in Unquoted CCDs 57,181.40 36,060.00
Equity portion of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 46,914.05
Equity portion of related party loans 36,164.15 37,337.25
liInvestment in financial guarantees 79.39 79.38
Financial Asset of Invest. in preference shares issued by related parties 25,889.31 23,384.11
Lpans to Related parties 76,233.94 62,460.12
Cash & Cash Equivalent 60.75 30,135.50
Trade Receivables 920.03 2,126.88
Other Financial Assets 7.327.01 17,870.22
Total 271,207.84 276,805.34
Rupees in Lacs
11 Income Tax-Non Current s i
come Tax-Non Curren March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Advance income tax (net of provision for current tax) 611,34 789.95
611.34 789.95

Rupees in Lacs

As At As At|
12 Deferred Tax Assets/(Uablity) March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Deferred Tax Assets
Total
Deferred Tax Uablities
Total m
Net Deferred Tax Assets/({Uablities) - &
As At As At
13 Other Curvant/bon Current Assats March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(i) Other Non Current Assets (Considered Good)
Balance with government authorities 30.80
Prepaid Expenses pertains to Gratuity 141,59 134.43
172.39 134.43
(ii) Other Current Assets (Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses 0.34 1.14
Advances recoverable In cash or kind 113.03 61.57
Balance with government authoritles 484.70 381.23
598.07 443.94

4
145

. Palace Road,
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
14 Share capital As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31
Authorised ’ 2
{i} 234,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 234,200.00 234,200.00
(March 31, 2023: 234,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) £
(i) 17,96,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 179,600.00 179,600.00
(March 31, 2023: 17,96,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 100 each) ’
413,800.00 413,800.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up A————————]
(i} 843,334,710 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 84,333.47 £4,333.47
{March 32, 2023: 843,334,710 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
84,333.47 84,333.47
NOTES :
{i) Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pay dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director is subject to the approval of

the shareholder in ensuing Annual General meeting.
In event of liquidation of the Company,

distribution of all prefrential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 1

Pursuant to Compaosite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon'ble Nati

Mumbai vide its order

the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
he number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

onal Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
dated August 03, 2022, the authorised share capital altered from Rs. 395000.00 lacs (divided into 23400 lacs Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1610 lacs preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/-
lacs Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1736 lacs Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/-
effective from 11.08.2022 with the Appointed Date i.e April 01, 2013,

each) to Rs. 413800.00 lacs (divided into 23420
each) on the date scheme become

(i) Reconcilation of the Equity shares outstanding at beginning and at end of the period
As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Rupees in Lacs Number Rupees in Lacs

Equity Shares
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 843,334,710 84,333.47 775,440,510 77,544.05
Capital Reduciton during the period - - - -
Shares Issued during the year - - 67,894,200 6,789.42

843,334,710 333.47 | 843,334,710 84,333.47
Shares outstanding at the end of the year % 84 4

Share Capital Issued

Pursuant to the sanctioned Composite Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation amongst GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited, GMR

Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited {Transferor Companies), GMR Highways Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders & Creditors sanctioned vide Order dated August 03, 2022 by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (NCLT),

allotment of 6,78,94,200 (Six Crore Seventy Eight Lakh Ninety Four Thousand Twe Hundred Only) equity shares of Rs.10/- each was made to
GMR Generations Assets Limited on September 0G, 2022.

Further, with effect from 24-03-2023, 67,894,200 equity shares held by GMR Generation Asset Limited

{GGAL) transferred to GMR Power and
Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL).

(iv) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023
No of Share % No of Share %
Equity Shares
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 767,789,941 91.04% qmﬁ“m.ﬂmw onm”
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited 75,544,769 8.96% 75,544,

A
Hight Paint Iy

45, Palace Road,
Bangalore-1




{v) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates / Promoters

Out of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

their

Equity Shares

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

767,789,937 (March 31, 2023: 767,789,937) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

GMR Business Process and Services P Ltd representing and for the
benefit of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald up

GMR Corporate Affairs P Ltd representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Corporate Services Limited (formerly known as GMR
Aerostructures Services Limited) representing and for the benefit
of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Infra Developers Limited representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Mr. Kiran Kumar Grandhi representing and for the benefit of
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
75,544,768 (March 31, 2023: 75,544,768) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

As At
March 31, 2024
Number Rupees In Lacs

As At
March 31, 2023
Number Rupees in Lacs

767,789,937 76,778.99 | 767,789,937 76,778.99

75,544,768

7,554.48

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

0.00 1

75,544,768

7,554.48

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15 Other Equity

Rupees in Lacs

As At March 31, 2024

As At March 31, 2023

(i) |equity component of Preference shares

Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(i

Equity component of Loans from group companies
Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(ii) | Equity component of Cumpulsory Covertible Debentures
Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(iii){ surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year

(iti)| Other Comprehensive Income- Re-measurement {loss)/ galns en
defined benefit plans
Opening Balance

Add : During the year

16,968.23

19,179.49
(0.00)

e

2,576.00

12,218.69
(8,246.98)

70,53

{1.28)

- 16,968.23 -

19,179.49 4

397171

69.25 {2.21)

42,764.67

16,968.23

19,179.49

2,576.00 s

25,210.82
{12,992.13)

e —————

16,968.23

19,179.49

12,218.69




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees In Lacs
As At As At
16 Long Term Borrowi
ong ngs March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Secured
Debentures (secured) 70,000.00 -
Term loans (Indian rupee term loan from bank) - 55,621.34
Unsecured
Loans from group company 33,015.43 41,052.11
103,015.43 96,673.45

(i}. The Company has issued 7,000 Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable & Non-Convertible Debentures with face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each of a total
value of Rs. 70000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: NIL) by way of private placement. The tenure of the debenture is 48 {Forty-Eight) months from the
Closing date. The Coupon/rate of interest is fixed @ 14 % per annum payable annually. The entire Debentures shall be paid in a single tranche at
end of 48 (forty-eight) months from the date of allotment of Debentures.

The Company shall create an exclusive charge on 100 % of the Equity Shares of GHL by way of Pledge. Corporate Guarantee by GMR Power & Urban
Infra Limited (Holding Company of GHL) to the tune of the transaction including interest accrued during the tenure of the agreement. The Company

shall create first ranking equal & proportionate charge in the nature of a hypothecation over all existing (including any future) receivables to be
created in favor of the of the debenture trustee.

(ii). Secured Indian rupee term loan from Yes bank of Rs. NIL {March 31, 2023: 62389.45 lacs) was secured by First charge over current assets and
movable fixed assets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x,
Pledge over 20% shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport
Limited {GAL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights to be pledged by GIL, Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR
Infrastrcuture Limited, and Margin of 6% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YBL). The margin
shall be lien marked/pledged to YBL prior to first disbursement.

The loan carries an interest rate 3.20% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly instaliments after the
moratorium period or 12 months.

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. The company has
prepaid the entire loan in February 2024 :

(iii). Secured Indian rupee term loan from Yes bank of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2023: 11192.41 lacs) was secured by First charge over current assets and
movable fixed assets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x,
Pledge over 20% shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 8% Shares of GEL along with all
beneficial/economic voting rights and NDU over 2% shares of GEL (Prior to Disbursment), Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport Limited (GAL)
along with all beneficial/economic voting rights (Prior to Disbursment) , Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR Infrastrcuture
Limited Margin of 19,14% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YEL). The margin shall be lien
marked/pledged to YBL prior to first disbursement.

The loan carries an inlerest rate 3.10% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly installments after the
moratorium period or 12 months

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. The company has
prepaid the entire loan in February 2024

{iv) An unsecured loan of Rs NIL (as at March 31, 2023:10189.11 lacs) from GMR Power and Urban Infra Ltd. shall be repayable within 3 yrs from
date of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.25% p.a. The company has paid the entire loan in during FY 2024

(v) An unsecured loan of Rs 33015.43 lacs (as at March 31, 2023; 30863.00 Jacs) from GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited shall be repayable within
6 yrs from date of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 7.25% p.a.




Rupees In Lacs

57 Teida Ravibl As At As At
AT March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Trade Payables
A | ODue to micro small and medium enterprise 2,136.53 2,677.51
i her th i Il an i
. Due to ..”_én_:oa other than micro small and medium 2,615.62 3,598.00
enterprise
4,752.15 6,275.60
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024 Rupees in Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
: More than 3
Amt Not Due | Less than1year | 1-2years | 2-3 years years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 1,012.12 424.28 262.15 437.98 | 2,136.53
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 232.50 486.97 40.57 1,855.58 | 2,615.62
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - . -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
- 1,244.62 911.25 302.72 2,293.56 | 4,752.15
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3
Amt NotDue | Lessthanlyear| 1-2years | 2-3 years years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - 1,692.01 303.55 481.65 20029 | 2,677.51
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 1,316.45 105.00 1,432.88 743.76 | 3,598.09
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -
- 3,008.46 408.55 1,914.54 94405 | 6,275.60
O\
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Rupees In Lacs
| As At As At
1%/ Shorttum i March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Secured
(a) Current Maturities of long term debt - 17,960.52
Unsecured
{a) Short term Loan from related parties 21,879.16 12,199.92
21,879.16 30,160.44

(i) An unsecured loan of Rs

5590.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 5590.00 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within
12 months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an Interest rate of 11% p.a.

(ii) An unsecured loan of Rs. 6219.92 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs. 6219.92 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within
12 months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 10% p.a.

(iti) An unsecured loan of Rs. 290.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2023: Rs 290.00 lacs) from Raxa Security Service Ltd. shall be repayable within 12 months
from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.50% p.a.

{iv) Unsecured Short Term loan of Rs.100.00 lacs ( March 31, 2023 - Rs.100.00 lacs ) from Raxa Security Services Limited Carries an
interest rate of 10%.

(v) An unsecured loan of Rs. 9679.24 lacs {as at March 31, 2023: NIL) from GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Ltd. shall be repayable within 12
months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.00% p.a.

Rupees in Lacs
5 As At As At
29 Otiar sl 1isiiny March 31, 2024| March 31,2023
(i) Non Current
{a) Financial guarantee contracts 9.96 14.57
(b) Interest accrued on borrowings (NCDs) 990.71 -
(c) Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans 2,508.70 2161
3,509.37 36.18
(i) Current
(a) Interest Accrued Others - -
(b} Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans and deposi 7,127.59 6,245.43
(c) Financial guarantee contracts 4.61 5.75
(d) Non trade payables 125.23 177.19
7,257.43 6,428.37

c:\45, Palace Road, w_w
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Rupees in Lacs

f financial liablities cat i gl AsAs
Breakup of financial liablities category wise March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Secured Loan from Banks - 73,581.87
Loans from related parties 54,894.59 53,252.03
Long term Secured NCDs 70,000.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10,627.00 6,267.04
Financial guarantee contracts 14.57 20.33
Trade Payables 4,752.15 6,275.60

Non trade payables 125.23 177.19
140,413.53 139,574.05
§iq As At As At
20 Provisions March31,2024| March 31, 2023
(i) Non Current
(i) Current
(a) Provision for Leave benefits 9.60 7.31
(b) Provision for Other Employee Benefit - &
(c) Other Provision 894.37 1,596.22
903.97 1,603.53
R As At As At
21 Current tax liabilities March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Provision for taxation (net) - -
Rupees in Lacs
A As At As At
21 li ti
Other current Ralsiities March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Advances from customers & others 5,535.66 5,688.41
TDS Payable 246.42 144.41
Other Statutory dues 118 4.56
5,783.27 5,837.38

€2\45, Palace Roag,
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22 Revenue from operations
(a) Operation and maintenance 8,968.92 11,451.89
(b) Highway Maintenance Fees - 42.00
8,968.92 11,493.89
23 Other income
(a) Interest Income on Bank Deposit and Others 593.78 109.56
(b) Management Fee - 13.27
(c) Interest Income of Financial Assets 7,158.19 7,905.93
(d) Interest Income on Inter Corporate Loans 1,155.68 3,711.02
(e) Profit on sale of Mutual Fund 0.47 0.26
(f) Provisions/Liability no longer required written back 207.01 168.34
(g) Gain on disposal of assets (net) - 50.16
(h) Other non-operating income 535 7.10
9,120.88 11,965.66

v\ Bangalore-1




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Rupees in Lacs
Year ended Year ended
24 Operating expenses March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Sub contracting expenses 1,630.35 1,758.16
(b) Operation & maintenance expenses 7,325.63 7,341.52
8,955.98 11,099.68
Year ended Year ended
25 Employee benefit expense March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Salaries, Perguisites & Allowance 70.07 56.71
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 4.67 4.13
(c) Gratuity expense P ;
(d) Staff welfare expenses 0.20 0.65
74.94 61.49
Year ended Year ended
26 Finance costs March 31,2024)  March 31, 2023
{3) Interest on debts and borrowings 10,322.47 12,521.69
{b) Interest on intercompany debt and borrowings 4,817.64 1,745.48
(c) Interest Others 5.53 446
(d) Other borrowing cost 1,963.54 1,010.75
17,109.18 15,282.38
Year ended Year ended
27 Depreciation and amortisation expense March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2.43 2.69
2.43 2.69
Rupees in Lacs
Year ended Year ended
28 Other expenses March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rent 5.36 5.08
Rates and taxes 402 0.81
Logo Fees 0.01 0.01
Insurance 0.14 037
Fixed assets writeoff 0.00 0.00
Repairs and maintenance Others 219 4.40
Travelling and conveyance 134 3.37
Communication costs 0.14 0.13
Securtiy Expenses 2.50 2.50
Printing and stationery 0.03 0.08
Membership 2.25 6.00
Lega! and professional fees 11450 113.07
Directors’ sitting fees 4.40 5.75
Advertising and business promotion 831 4.00
Kecruitment expenses - 0.02
Weeting and seminar 0.06 0.54
| Bank charges 7.08 0.40
Remuneration 1o auditor 11.30 4.00
Charities and Donations - 10.00
Miscellaneous expenses 30.62 13.01
194.25 173.51
Payment Lo audilor
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rupees in Lacs Rupees in Lacs
As auditor.
Audit fee 7.00 250
Tax audit fee 0.7% 0.50
Other services (certification fees) 3.55 100
.q.WnU— i \ 11.30 4.00

fs * u‘*‘“‘
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GMR Highways Limited
ON: U45203MHI006PLC2E7171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

29 Eaming/ (Loss) Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Com)

pany (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares / CCDs) by
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus

the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on cenversion of all the dilutive
potential Equity shares into Equity shares,
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (Rs In Lacs) (8,246.98) {12,992.13)
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (Rs in Lacs) (8,236.98) (12,992.13)
Profit attributable to equity holders for diluted earnings (Rs in Lacs) (8,246.98) {12,992.13)
Weighted Average number of equity shares for computing Earning Per Share (Basic) 843,334,710 843,334,710
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 843,334,710 843,334,710
Earning Per Share {Basic) (Rs) {0.98) {1.54)
Earning Per Share (Diluted) (Rs} (0.98) (1.549)
Face value per share (Rs) 10 10

30 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of conti
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affec

31 Capital Commitments
Capital commitments : Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil ( March 2023: Rs, NIL).
32 Contingent Liabilities

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
ngent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
ted in future periods.

Rupees in Lacs
(i} |Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee in favor of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for the benefit of 5,550.00 5,550.00
GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Pvt Ltd { Borrower )

(i) A Show Cause notice has been issued by Commissioner of Customn {DRI

Matters) to its earlier subsidiary GOHHPL whereby a penalty of Rs 15.91 lacs has been imposed by the
authority, against which company has filed appeal

before CESTAT after depositing 7.5% of penalty amount i.e. Rs 1,19 lacs, which is pending as on date for adjudication.
Litigation:

Company is having a litigation matter which mainly came on-account of merger of TT and TA in accordance of N
Concession Agreement, there was change/increase in the Minimum Alternative Tax rates and Service Tax rates
¥1B.43 crores under Change in Law 35 per Article 11 of the Concession Agreement dated 09.10.2001.

The Hon'ble Tribunal vide order dated 24th Feb’2018 had upheld the claims of the Cam,
the date of the award (total amount %21,27,
till the date of actual payment.

Since NHAI did not pay the decretal amount by the time allowed by the Arbitral Tribunal, the Company had filed an execution petition u/s 36 of Arbitration Act, 18996, before Hon'ble
Delhi High Court for recovery of the awarded amount. NHAI had alse challe

...nnuc.nhs_ua_u___.m___._n-nu_xu:o.._E..awao___"___ob&_.aco:bnﬂHmmm..?n:n:.ﬁunc_cnfn clubbed the
Execution Petition of the Company with the plication filed by NHAI as the parties and subject of both the cases were similar.

In compliance of the directions of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, NHAI had deposited an amount of 21.44 cr. on 17.08.2018 with the Registrar of the Court. On applications of the

Company, Delhi High Court vide order dated 20.07.2022 has released the amount deposited by NHAI and further vide order dated 28.09.2022 has allowed the application of the
Company for release of balance amount lying with the court.

Company has received amount of Rs 25.29 lacs {aleng with interest) on 23.08.2022,

Delhi High Court vide order dated 15.09.2022 in an application filed by GMR Highways Ltd. has allowed the substitution of GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited with GMR
Highways Ltd. GMR has filed an application seeking deposit of the deficit amount deposited by NHA!, Matter is now listed on 23.07.2024

» ¥

CLT order dated 3rd August, 2022. In TT, subsequent to signing of
and the Fringe Benefit Tax was intraduced, thereby leading to claims of

pany and has awarded 214,51,57,902 plus interest of %6,75,61,842/- at SBI PLR plus 3% upto
19,744/-). NHAI was given time till 7th April, 2018 to pay the total amount failing which interest @ 7% p.a. will be payable from 25.02.2018

B The Additional Director, Director General of GST Intelligence (“DGGI") had issued a Show Cause Natice No.116/2022-23 dated 30.01.2023 to GMR Highways Limited [GMR Tuni-

2&5&-:.?!3.«5«5?3_:Q:_Fnon_..oiu.uo why CGST and TGST amounting to Rs.17,68,86,000/- should not be demanded and recovered from GMR Highways Limited u/s
73(1) of Central GST Act,2017 and Section 73(1) of the Andhra Pradesh GST >ﬂ.~anw.

Aggrieved by aforesaid SCN, GMR Highways had filed Writ of Certiorari before High court of Andhra Pradesh, On 16.03,2023, Court directed the
Jobjections to the impugned show cause notice dated 30.01,2023 and the respondent authorities were directed not to take any coercive action purs
notice till next date of hearing. The matter is currently pending and next date of hearing is yet to be fixed.

pany to submit its explanati
uant to the said show cause

5 Nz
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Stat

ts for the Year ended M

h 31, 2024

34 The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contract for which there were -3__. material foreseeable losses.

35 Investment Pledge detail

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Shares Held | Shares Pledged Total Shares Held Shares Pledged
f rof In favour of
{In No.] (inhay [ioveu (1n Ne.) (1nNo.}
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 1 306,000 IDBI Trusteeship 2.450,000 300,000 1DBI Trusteeship
|Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up} S i L Services Ltd AS0; 1,300, Services Ltd
GMR Chennal Outer Ring Road Private Limited (Equity |0BI Trusteeship IDBI Trusteeship
14,700,000 ,512,500 14,700,000 5,512 :

shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up) 3 Services Ltd 212500 Services Ltd
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 713 IDBI Trusteeship 27 IDBI Trusteeship
(Preference shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up) 21,900/000 7,735, Services Ltd 21,600,000 »735,713 Services Ltd
GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited ( 1DBI Trusteeship 1DBI Trusteeship
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid up) 30,742,720 50,742,720 Services Ltd 2O RTI0 HRIN Services Ltd
The above shares have been pledged as per the condition provided in the Rupee Term Loan Agreement.
* Company has pledged Equity shares held by it in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expr ys Pvt. Ltd,, in favor of IDBI Trusteeship Sevices Ltd for securing the term loan of Rs, 282 Crores
availed by GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Pvt. Ltd. its subsidiary company. Company has created the charge through Dead of Hypothecation dated October 05 2015 and the
charge is registered with Registrar of Companies Mumbai vid arge Certificate No. 10610945,

36 The Company has made an investment of Rs. 40775.71 lacs (March 31 2023: Rs. 27407.31 lacs) [including loans of Rs.NIL (March 31 2023: Rs. 7753.00 lacs) share application money

pending allotment of Rs. NIL (March 31 2023: NIL) and investment in equity / preference shares/CCDs of Rs. 40775.71 lacs [March 31 2023: Rs. 19654.31 Lacs) in GMR Ambala
Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (‘GACEPL') a Subsidiary of the Company. GACEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of commercial operations. The
management believes that these losses are due to loss of revenue arising as a result of divesrion of partial traffic on prallel roads. The matter is currently under arbitration however

based on management's internal assessment and a legal opinion the management of GACEPL is confident that it will be able to claim compensation from relevant authorities for the
loss it has suffered due to such diverion of traffic and accordingly the Investment in GACEPL has been carried at cost.

The three member Hon'ble Trbunal vide its order dated 26th August, 2020, has pronounced the awards wherein majority of the Tribunal has disagreed with the contention of the

company 2nd has rejected all the claim of the company whereas the minority Tribunal has upheld the claims of the company.

Subsequently, NHAI vide letter dated 03.09.2020 has asked the Company to deposit the amount along with the interest. NHAI has also written to Central Bank of India, Escrow Bank

to remit the amountAggrieved by rejection of all of its claims, GMR had filed two applications each in both Punjab and Haryana matters before Delhi High Court — ane u/fs 34 of

Arbitration Act, 1995, seeking setting aside of the award of Arbitral Tribunal and another application u/s 9 of Arbitration Act, 1996, seeking stay on the letters of NHAl demanding
of the ir of Negative Grant along with interest. GMR had also filed an application under section 36 of Arbitration Act, 1996, for stay of aperation of the Award till

the time its challenge /s 34 is decided. .

The Court vide its order dated 24.09.2020 had admitted the challenge to Award and issued notice In section 34 application but the other two applications filed u/s 9 and 36 were

rejected.

Delhi High Court vide order dated 26.09.2022, has set aside the award dated 26.08.2020 and the entire dispute is to be referred to arbitration once again for which parties are at

liberty to re-initiate arbitral proceedings as per the contractual covenants. All Issues of fact and law would remain open to be agitated by GMR , NHAI and States of Haryana and
Punjab in the de-novo arbitral proceedings,

Pey

_aiiihc&naigguﬁgnu:;m:znncuzz_p_i—squ!wiuurux_;u:s_.:o%«u!mi_-uu:e R_nﬁnnmbuucnr._suvuno_Eﬁn.uoﬂwc:mwmrnsm.ﬁ Company became
infructuous and was withdrawn on 28.08.2023,

The Division Bench of Delhi High Court vide judgement dated 20.09.2023 dismissed the appeals filed by NHAI and GoHR against the judgment dated 26.09.2022 passed by the learned
Single Judge. On 01.04.202¢, the Division Bench of Delhi High Court dismissed the appea| filed by State of Punjab against the judgment dated 26.09.2022 passed by tha learned Single
Judge.

Fegerieved by dismissal of its appeal u/s 37 of Arbitration and Concillation Act, 1996, NHA| has filed two SLPs in Supreme Court. GoHR has also filed SLP challenging dismissal of its
appeal u/s 37. The matters are now tentatively listed in the week commencing 02.09.2024,

The Company has made an investment of Rs. 65037,00 lacs {March 31 2023: Rs. 65037.00 lacs) [including loans of Rs.43192.00 lacs {March 31 2023: Rs. 43192.00 lacs) share
2pplication money pending allotment of Rs. NIL {(March 31 2023: NIL) and investment In equity / preference shares of Rs. 21845.00 lacs (March 31 2023: Rs. 21845.00 lacs) in GMR
Hyderabad Vijayawada Expr vs Private Limited ('GHVEPL') a subsidiary of the Company. GHVEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of commercial operations.
These losses are primarily due to loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commerclal traffic due to bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban on sand mining in the region.
These events constitutes a Change in Law as per the Concession Agreement and same has been agreed by NHAI and has also agreed to pay compensation, however there was no
agreement on the quantification of the claim amount. GHVEPL has invaked Arbitration and has filed a claim of Rs, 167600.00 lacs (Based on values upto March 31, 2020) before the
Tribunal. Tribunal vide its order dated March 31, 2020 has pronounced the award unanimously, uphelding GHVEPL's contention that bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban
©on sand mining in the region constitutes Change in Law event and GHVEPL is entitled for compansation for the loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial vehicles.
However, on the guantum of the claim ameunt, majerity of the Tribunal members has directed NHAI to constitute a committee for determining the claim amount based on data /
record avallable with GHVEPL and NHAI,

Company had filed two applications u/s 34 (challenge to Award to limited ground that NHAI cannot be judge of its own cause] and u/s 9 of the Arbitration Act [seeking stay on
recovery of Negative Grant till claims are gquantified]. NHAI also filed its challenge u/s 34 of the Arbitration Act to the arbitration award.

Aggrieved by the order dated 04.08.2020 passed by the Single Judge dismissing the challenge of NHAI to the Award, NHAI has filed an appeal u/s 37 of AA, 1996, before Division Bench

of Delhi High Court challenging the said order, The same was listed on 07.09.2020 when the Court refused to interfere with the order passed by Single Judge and directed that the
proceedings before Mr. Justice D.K. Jain will continue subject to outcome of the present appeal.

On 05.01.2024, arguments by both the parties were concluded. The matters are reserved for judgement.




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

On May 8, 2020, GHVEPL has received a notice from NHAI restricting the concession period to 15 years pursuant to clause 3.2.2. of the Concession Agreement by stating that NHAI is
satisfied that 6-laning of the project is not required. GHVEPL has sought material on tecord from NHAI and has further obtained legal opinion.

Aggrieved by the action of NHAL, the Company has invoked arbitration under Dispute Resolution mechanlism prescribed under the Concession Agreement,

Arbitral Tribunal has been reconstituted comprising of Mr. Justice J. Chelameswar (Retd.) (as Presiding) (earliar Ms. Justice R, Banumathi), Justice Mr. Dilip B. Bhosale {nominee of
GMR) and Mr. Samirendra Chatterjee, 1AS (Retd) {nominee of NHAI},

GHVEPL has filed an application u/s 17 of the Arbitration Act, 1996 before Tribunal for stay of operation of NHAI's letter dated 08.05.2620 till conclusion of arbitration proceedings.
By order dated 07.11,2022, the AT has allowed the application and directed stay on operation of letter dated 0B.05.2020 till the final Award.

Counsel for both the parties concluded their submissions on 14.04,2024, The matter Is now reserved for pronouncement of award.,

38 leases

The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements for office pramises.
The lease rentaks paid during the period and the maximum obligation on the long term cancellable

perating lease payable are as follows:
Rupees in Lacs
|Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease rentals under cancellable and non-cancellable leases

5.36 5.08

39 Based on information available with the Company, suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprises under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 20067 as at March 31, 2024 has been classified under note no. 17A.
Provision for Rs 0.14 lacs created in books on account of interest accrued and remaining unclaimed,

40 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

Valuation of Employee Benefit has been done for the period ended March 31 2024 as per INDAS 19 - Employee Benefits issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(=) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions paid / payable to defined contribution plans comprising of provident fund

, pension fund, superannuation fund etc., in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations are recognised as expenses during the year when the tontributions to the respective funds are due.

Rupees in Lacs
; " Year ended Year ended
_March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution to provident fund 3.19 265
Contribution to superannuation fund 0.29
319 294

¢2\4%, Falace Roag
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31,2024

(b) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has defined benefit plan, namely gratuity. As per scheme, an employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity equivalents to 15 days salary (last

drawn salary) for each completed year of service,

The following table summarises the components of net expense recognised in the income statement and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity,

Net Benefit Expenses

Components of defined benefit costs recognised In profit or loss
Current service cost

Past Service Cost - plan amendments
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / loss due to DBO experience
Actuarial (gains) / lass due to DBO assumption changes
Return on Plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate
Total

Benefit Asset/ (Liability)
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Benefit Asset/ (Liability)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost

Past Service Cost - plan amendments

Benefits Paid

Net actuarial(gain)/loss recognised in year

Acquisition adjustment

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets
Acquisition adjustment

Interest Income on Plan Assets
Comtributions by employer
Expected return

Eenefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

am.vmﬂmnwnoma.
Bangalore-1 /1~

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rupees in Lacs Rupees in Lacs
0.956 0.86
(9.40) (7.19)
(8.43) (6.33)
109 0.25
0.19 {0.09)
- 205
128 2
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(7.18) {4.61)
148.77 139.04
“_.Em 134.43
4.61 3128
0.24 0.24
0.96 0.86
1.28 0.16
- (27.92)
7.18 4.61
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
139.04 119.08
= 14.58
9.73 7.42
- {2.08)
148.77 135.04




AR Mghways Limited
N U45203MH2006PLC287171

tes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The maior categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Discount rate 7.00% 7.30%
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality table used Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)
ult. Ult.
Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 5.00%
The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in
.rao:.locﬂo:ﬁ:ﬂ..rnn

nos.ﬂﬁcng«xuantns_xaan.3»:.9323nﬁ=d¢83§ﬁuuw?‘z__.._uqﬂ..uﬁ year Rs.NIL)
Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratuity scheme Is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal,

The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the
financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase
Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation
Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these

decrements on the defined benefit obligation Is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria, It is impaortant not to
overstate withdrawals because In the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Significant actuarlal assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on r bly possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Sensitivity Analysis Rupees in Lacs
March 31, 2024
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% +1% -1% +1% -1%
Amount in INR
Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.60) 0.68 0.68 (0.61) 0.04 (0.05)
March 31, 2023
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% +1% -1% +1% 1%
A tin INR
Impact on defined benefit obligation {0.41) 0.46 0.46 (0.41) 0.02 {0.03)
Maturity Plan of defined benefit obligation: Rug inlacs
Within 1 year 0.43
1-2 year 0.44
2-3 year 044
3-4 year 0.45
4-5 year 045
5-10 year 232
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CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

41 List of Related parties and Transactions / Outstanding Balances:
a) Name of Related Parties and description of relationship:
Enterprises that control the Company / excercie|GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL)
significant influence GMR Enterprises Pvt Ltd. (GEPL) (the Parent Company)
Subsidiary Companies of the reporting enterprise GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd (GPEL)
GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACE)
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL)
GMR Chennai Quter Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL)
Fellow Subsidiaries / Associates GMR Airpart Developers Limited (GADL)
GMR Airport Infrastructure Limited (GIL) (formerly known as GMR Infrastructure
Limited)
GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)
GMR Generation Assets Limited { GGAL)[ formerly known as GMR Renewable
Energy Limited (GREL)]
GMR Airports Limited (GAL)
Corporate Infrasructure Service Pvt Ltd (CISPL)
GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited (GKSIR)
GMR SEZ AND PORT HOLDING LIMITED (GSPHL)
Namitha Real Estate Private Limited (NREPL)
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Ltd {GHIAL)
Delhi Internation Airport Limited
Raxa Security Services Ltd
Dhruvi Securities Ltd.(D5L)
Key Management Personnel Mr. BV N Rao, Director
Mr. O.Bangaru Raju Managing Directar
Mr. Madhva B. Terdal , Director
Mr. K. P Rao, Independent Director (till 07 Sep.2022)
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy
Mrs. Sridevi Venisheety, Woman Director
Mr S. Rajagopal, Independent Director
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

b) Summary of transactions with above related parties are as foll Rupees in Lacs
Name of Entity Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Transaction with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise significant Influence
GPUIL Interest Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken 585.29 418,07
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPUIL 11,551.51 4,605.10
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GPUIL 1,362.40 14,794.21
Managements Support Services-Expense 63.68 54.31
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work (28.02) -
Work Contract Services Provided to GPUIL - 1,401.00
Short Term Loan Given to GPUIL {Corporate) 14,689.25 1,872.00
Short Term Loan Refund by GPUIL (Corporate) 708.50 12,902.13
Short Term Loan Given to GPUIL {EPC) 1,315.00 414.74
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL EPC) 233,00 132.25
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL Corp) 248.17 433.34
GEPL Logo Fees and Trade Mark 0.01 0.01
Transaction with Subsidiaries Rupees in Lacs
GACEPL Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income 163.08 237.36
Charges for Major Maintenance Work- Income 1517.62 137744
Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment - 125.14
Interest income on Long Term Loan Given (GTT / GTA) 557.59 556.07
Financial Assets portion of Loan converted inte CCDs 7,753.00 -
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work {0.04) {1.10)
Investment in CCDs issued by GACEPL 21,121.40 -
Interest income on Investment in CCDs 0.24
Interest Income on finanical asset part of Loan given 566.89 580.34

Hight Plint IV
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Jectes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024
PR Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income 36952 T
Charges for Major Maintenance Work- Income 1.847.82 1035.35
Charges for COS Work- Income 1,630.42 2606.49
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work 198.86 (84.88)
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPEL 70.00 34146
Unsecured Loan taken from GPEL 70.00 150.00
Interest on Unsecured Loan Taken 124151 1,257.15
GCORRPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment 519.31 467.84
Interest on Unsecured Loan Given - 367.45
Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work - Income 485.58 292.55
Charges for Major Maint e Work - | 102.61 -
Charges for COS Work - Income - 124.30
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Wark {281.26) 12251
|income for Financial Guzrantee given 5.75 7.00
Short Term Loan Taken 9,679.24 -
Interest on Unsecured Loan Taken 454.87
Sub Debts Given to CORR - 1,216.73
Sub Debts Refund by CORR - 4,452.09
GHVEPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment 1,985.89 1,789.07
Interest income on Loan given 3,776.13 3,401.88
Charges for Repair & Maintenance - Income 616.33 591.39
Charges for Major Maintennace Work - Income 213375 347247
Charges for COS Work - Income 2.18 420
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work (42.68) (88.31)
|Short Term Loan Refunded by GHVEPL 1,200.00 -
Transaction with Fellow Subsidiaries / Associates/loint Ventures Rupees in Lacs
GIL Unsecured Long Term Loan refunded to GIL 9,919.00 -
Interest Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken 2,489.46 2401
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GIL 12,071.43 30,863.00
GIL - SIL )V Unsecured Short Term Loan Given 1,690.00 300.00
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GIL SIL 85.00 487.00
Interest Income on Loan given 54.16 37.94
CISPL Unsecured Loan Given to CISPL 10,000.00 -
Unsecured Loan Refunded by CI5PL 10,000.00 :
Interest Income on Loan given 37.67 -
Mamitha Real Estate Unsecured Loan Given - 72.89
Interest Income on Loan given 21.24 21.06
GKSIR Unsecured Loan Given to KSIR - -
Interest income on Financial asset (GTT) - 1,262.79
Unsecured Loan Refunded by KSIR . 100.00
investment in CCDs of GKSIR (loan converted) . 23,460.00
|interest Income on CCDs 235 0.10
Interest Income on Loan given - 1.25:-::
GSPHL Unsecured Loan Given - ﬁs.m
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GSPHL = . m.m
|investment in CCDs of GSPHL (loan converted) 1-25 2, o.
Interest income on CCDs _ ?33:“
Interest Income on Loan given - 55
GHIAL PMC fee for Impl ion of Fare Collection Systm - Income P 5T
DIAL Support services for vehicle running [Diesel service) .' . :
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecured Loan Taken 5o il
Security Service Charges P pop
Interest Expenses on Loan Taken 2 >
PRAKALPA PROPERTIES PRIVATE  |Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued Q:O; j
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCOs v -
PADMAPRIYA PROPERTIES PRIVATE | Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued g 1
LIMITED Interest E on CCOs e -
NADIRA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued s 1
LIMITED Interest Exp on CCDs e
IDIKA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued o ]
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCDs 41100 .
EILA PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED |Compulsery Convertible Debentures Issued e g
Interest Exp on CCDs 300,00 .
DEEPESH PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsery Convertible Debentures Issued o T
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCOs o =
ASTERIA REAL ESTATES PRIVATE | Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued 0.00 4
LIMITED Interest Expenses on CCDs 10500 "]
AMARTYA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures Issued s
Interest Expenses an CCDs e
AKLIMA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures |ssued g ;
Interest Exp on CCDs =
Enterprise where Key Management Personnel and their relative exercls significant | ca 530] T 08
G. Varalakshmi Vizag Guest House Rental charges a 54.21J
GFFT Refund of Deposit by GFFT
*R of arenotc d In the above statement.
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GV Mighweays Limited
O US203MM2006PLIZR7171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Transaction with Key Management Personnel Rupees in Lacs
Details of Key Managerial Remuneration Outstanding
Personnel Short-term Post employment | Other long-term Termination Sitting Fee Others loans/advances
employee benefits benefits employee benefits recelvables
benefits
Mr, K. Parameswara Rao - - - - o - F
(1.00)|
Ms. SRIDEVI VENISHEETY - - - - 0.90] » -
Mr. S. Rajagopal - - - - L.75 . .
{2.05)
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy - - - - 1.75
- - - - {1.05) - -
Note: Values mentioned in bracket pertains to previous year
Rupees in Lacs
Name of Entity Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Closing Balances with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise significant influence
GPUIL Equity portion of Sub Debt 23,865.48 23,865.43
Equity portion of Preference Shares 22,583.58 22,583.58
Unsecured Long Term Loan Taken . 10,180.11
Interest Payable on Unsecured Loan - 417.86
Trade and Other Payables 281 43,66
Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 2559 23.20
Trade Receivable 456.59 -
Advance received on account of Work Contract Services “ 28.02
Unbilled Revenue for of Work Contract Services 858.96 1,401.00
Short Term Loan Given (GPUIL EPC) 2,834.65 1519.65
Short Term Loan Given {GPUIL Corporate) 13,980.75 -
Interest Receivable (GPUIL EPC) 226.40 343.90
Interest Recelvable (GPUIL Corporate) 223.36 -
Retention Money Payable 16.25 16.25)
GEPL Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 0.01 0.01
Closing Balances with Subsidiarles
GACEPL Investment In Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 5,074.27 £,074.27
|Equity Portion of Investment in Preferenec Shares 24,553.07 24,553.07
Interest Receivable on Long term loan given 3,916.67 3,582.41
Long term loan given 6,163.38 6,163.38
Financials Assets portion of Loan Given - 5.013.001
Investment in CCDs 21,121.40
Interest recelvable on CCDs - Long Term 0.22
Equity portion of Loan Given 446851 5,641.62
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work 0.02 0.04
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 22.67 51.19|
Trade and Other Receivables 87.41 10,156.02
CORR Investment in Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 1,470.00| 1,470.00
Equity Portion of Sub Debts Given 547.57 547.57
Short Term Loan Taken 9,679.24 -
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 5,366.68 4,847.37
Equity portion of Preference Shares Investment 6,011.67 6,011.67
Investment as Financial Guarantee given 79.39 79.39
Interest Payable 343.22 -
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work 1,469.79 1,751.06
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related B3.84 142,15
Trade and Other Receivables . 14.22
GHVEPL Financials Assets portion of Loan Given 39,023.33 35,247.20
Financial Assets of short term loan given 7,599.00 8,799.00
rEunv portion of Loan Given 29,255.49 29,255.49
Investment in Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 245.00 245.00
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 189.60 547.11
Trade and Other Receivables 412.19 814.23
Retention Money Receivable 51.12 51.12
Equity Portion of Investment In Preferenec Shares 16,349.31 16,349.31
Advance received on 1t of Routine Maint Fee / MMR Work 25.16 67.66
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 20,522.63 18,536.74
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L I Imvestment m Equity shars capital - [Other than trade) 13,583.00 13,593.00
Equity portion of Security Deposit Received 1158 1158
Unsecred Loan Taken 11.809.92 11,809.92
Interest payable on Unsecured Loan 6,388.10 5476.74
Mvmwmamdmm&e!mm 1,511.19 1,312.12
Unbilled Revenue for D&M /COS/MMA/T related 361.52 48408
[ Trade and Other Recenables - 124498
Closing Balances with Fellow Subsidiaries/ Assodiates/Joint Ventures
GiL lrm«m Actrued on Unsecured Loan (Long Term) 2,508.58 21.61
Unsecured Long Term Loan Takan 33,015.43 30,863.00
Dhrunn Equity portion of Preference Shares 187247 1,972.47
GHIAL Trade and Other Payzbles = 10.66]
GMPR Energy Limited Eguity Portion of Subordinate Debs 2.676.88 2,676.86)
|Namitha Real Estate |Interest recenmatble 41.23 20.01
Financials Azzets portion of Loan Given 172.89 172.89
GMR Sez and Port Holding Irrsestment in CCOs 12,600.00 12,600.00
Interest recerrable on CCDs -Long Term 118 0.05
DIAL Trade and Other Payabies 113.58 112.81
GGAL Interest Payable 2219.14 229.14
|Krishnagiri SIR Ltd Irrvestment in CCDs 23480.00 23,460.00
Interest recervable on CCDs - Long Term a2 0.09
Equity Component of Loan Gren 1,892.57 1,892.57
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecred Loan Taken 390.00 390.00
1Inhru| payatle on Ursecured Loan 167.13 121;.
Trade and Other Payables (Provisien) 245 2.90
GIL-SIL IV Interest recenatie 122.50 69.49
Short Term Loan Ghven 1,718.00 50.00
Long Term Loan Gaven D 63.00
PRAKALPA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert ble Detest ey bxsed 466.00 -
LIMITED Interest Payable on CLD 0.02 .
PADMAPRIYA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Comvert Lie Debertures tisues 350.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on LDy 0.02 -
NADIRA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert Lie Detest urei Iiwed 291.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDy 0.01 o
IDIKA PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convert die Detwrtures trnwed $71.00 .
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDy 0.03 .
EILA PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED |Compulsory Convertitie Debentres tazoes 411.00 -
Interest Payable on CCDy 0.02 -
DEEPESH PROPERTIES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertibie Debentures lisued 300.00 il
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDs 0.01 .
ASTERIA REAL ESTATES PRIVATE Compulsory Convertibie Debentures lisued 12.00 P
LIMITED Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 -
AMARTYA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued 105.00 .
Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 .
AKLIMA PROPERTIES PVT LTD Compulsory Convertible Debentures lssued €4.00 -
Interest Payable on CCDs 0.00 *
Grandhi Varalakshmi Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 1.25 0

Commitments with related parties:

As at pericd ended March 31, 2024, there is no commitment cutstanding with any of the related parties

Money ble from related parties does not arise. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market
in which the related party operates.
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tes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

2 Capital Management

For the purpese of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share, loan from related parties and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes within net debt,
external borrowings.

Rupees in Lacs

Particulars At March 31, 2024 At March 31, 2023
Borrowings- External 70,990.71 73,581.87
Borrowings- Related party 64,530,87 59,519.06
Net debts 135,521.59 133,100.93
Capital Components

Share Capital 84,333.47 84,333.47
Instruments entirely equity in nature 2,576.00 -
Other Equity 40,188.67 48,436.94
Total Capital 127,098.14 132,770.41
Capital and net debt 262,619.73 265,871.33
Gearing ratio (%) 51.60% 50.06%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing

loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current peried.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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43 Financial Instrument by Category

Rupees in Lacs es in Lacs
Particulars At March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 3
At Amortised Cost At FVTPL At Amortised Cost At FVTPL

— Cost | Fair Value Cost | Fair Value
Investment in Unquoted CCDs 57,181.40 - - 36,060.00 - -
Equity portion of compound financial instruments 46,914.05 - - 46,914.05 - -
Investment in related party loans 36,164.15 - - 37,337.25 - -
Investment in financial guarantees 79.39 - - 79.39 - -
Investment in preference shares issued to related parties 25,889.31 - - 23,384.11 - -
Loans to Related parties 76,233.94 - - 62,460.12 - -
Cash & Cash Equivalent 60.75 - - 30,135.50 - -
Trade Receivables 920.03 - . 2,126.88 - -
Other Financial Assets 7,327.01 - - 17,870.22 - -
Total 250,770.03 - - 256,367.53 - - |
Liabilities

Loans from related parties 54,894.59 - - 53,252.03 - -
Borrowing from external parties 70,000.00 - - 73,581.87 - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10,627.00 - - 6,267.04 - -
Financial guarantee contracts 1457 - - 20.33 - -
Trade Payables 4,752.15 - . 6,275.60 - -
Non trade payables 125.23 177.19

Total 140,413.53 - - 139,574.05 - |

44 Exceptional Items
Break-up of Exceptional Item Is as under:

Rupees in Lacs

Particulars At March 31, 2024 As at ::];r;h a1,
Gain / (Loss) on Receivables of CCDs 2 (10,033.67)
Total S [10‘08]:6?]

45 Fair values
The carrying amount of all financlal assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the financlal statements Is reasonable approximation of fair
values.,

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other fi ial assets, bo ings, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financlal assets and liabllities is Included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2= Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (L.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {uncobservable inputs),

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2024:
Fair Value at end of the reporting
Particulars At March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets - - . v

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023:
Falr Value measurement at end of the reporting
Particulars As at March 31, Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2023
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2024

45 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The
Company's principal financial assets is cash and cash equivalents, Investment and other bank balance.

The Company's exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of these risks, The Company’s senior management
is supported by 2 financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides e to the c y's senior management that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are

identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and commedity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and Investment measured at FVTPL .

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions. The analysis for the
contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 40.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This Is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate rick is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in ket interest rates. The C ¥'s exg to the
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s policy is to manage its interest cost using only interest free/ fixed rate debts from related parties.

The following table demonstrates the itivity to a r bly possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge

accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decrease Effect on profit
in basis points before tax

March 31, 2024 Rupees in Lacs
INR +50 (525.05)
INR -50 525.05
March 31, 2023
INR +50 (481.96)
INR -50 481.96
Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. With respect to credit risk arising
from other financial assets of the Company's, which comprise Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances and investment, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instrument.

The Carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 271207.84 lacs and Rs. 276805.33 lacs as at March 31,2024
and March 31,2023 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivable, balance with bank, bank depesits, investments and other financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a ble price. The Company's t y department is

responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management
monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash flows,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Rupees in Lacs
On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Years Total
Year ended
M“bnrmd‘ 3lnl;?nhrt.n.gm h Secured NCDs - 990.71 - - 70,000.00 - 70,990.71
Loan from Related parties - 29,006.75 = 35,52413 64,530.87
Trade payables 4,752.15 4,752.15
Other financial liabilities 125.23 125.23

h 34,874 B3 = - 105,524.13 - 140,398.96




Notes forming part of Financial Stat

for the Year ended March 31, 2024

On Demand %
et man Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3-5 years More than 5 Years Total
March 31, 2023
Term Loan from Bank - 18,884.18 2B,326.26 28,326.26 . 75,536.71
Loan from Related parties 18,445.35 10,189.11 30,824 61 59 '19 \
Trade payables 6,275.60 gy
Other financial liabilities 177.19 g
.19

. 43,782.32 28,326.26 38,515.38 30,284.61 - 141,508.57

Excessive risk concentration

The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business actlvities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the
company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include s
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hed,

pecific guldelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfofio, Identified
industry levels.

Eing [s used within the company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and

47 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company does not cover under section 135 of the companies act 2013.

48 Recent accounting proncuncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

43 Additional disclosure pursuant to schedule i of Companies Act 2013

There is no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1388) and
the rules made thersunder.
The Company does not have any transactions/ balances with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 to the best of knowledge of Company's management.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
(such 25, search or survey or any other relevant provisions) under Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company has not traded or invested funds in Crypto currency of Virtual currency.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entityfies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) ar
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), Including foreign entities(Funding Party) with the understating (whether recorded in writing cr ctherwise)

The Company has used borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date
The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

The quarterly return/ statement of current assets filed by the Company with bank and financial institutions in relation to secured borrowings wherever applicable are in agreement
with books of accounts.

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(2) repayable on demand or

{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

5. Palace Roag
Bangalore.;
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